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FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Finoncial stotements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial statements
of FTLife Insurance Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Principal place of business

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability under
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) on 27 June 1985. The Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong is located at 15/F NEQ, 123 Hoi Bun Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

Principal activities

The Group's principal activities consist of life insurance business, administration of retirement
schemes and investment holding. The Group does not carry on insurance business relating to
liabilities or risks in respect of which persons are required by any ordinance to be insured.

The Company’s principal activities consist of life insurance business, administration of retirement
schemes, other related business and investment holding. The activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 19 to the financial statements. ‘
Results and dividends

The Group's profit for the year ended 30 June 2022 and the state of affairs of the Company and
the Group as at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 8 to 124.

No interim dividend was paid during the year in respect of ail ordinary shares to the sole
shareholder. The directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for the year in
respect of all ordinary shares issued to the sole shareholder.

The directors also do not recommend the payment of any dividend for the year in respect of all
Class C redeemable preference shares issued to the sole shareholder.

On 21 September 2019, the Company executed an undertaking under which it will obtain prior
written consent from the Insurance Authority before any dividend is declared or paid to the
shareholder of the Company.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Company and the Group during
the year are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.

Share capital

Details of movements in the Company's share capital during the year are set out in note 40 to the
financial statements.

Reserves
Details of movementis in the reserves of the Company and the Group during the year are set out

in note 41(b) to the financial statements and consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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Charitable contributions

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions of HK$301,000 (For the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2021: HK$500,000).

Directors

The directors of the Company during the year end and up to the date of this report were as follows:

IP Man Kit (appointed on 1 September 2022)
CHENG Kwok Sing, Joe (appointed on 1 August 2021)
FANG Lin (resigned con 1 January 2022)

CHENG Chi Kong, Adrian

Cyril Hamilton WHITTER

MA Siu Cheung

CHAN Yiu Fai (appointed on 8 June 2022)

Independent Non-Executive Direcfors:

Stuart Hamilton LECKIE
CHAN Ka Lok
NG Chi Shing, Bartholomew

In accordance with bye-law 74 of the Company’s bye-laws, the number of directors shall be such
number not less than two as the Company by resolution may from time to time determine. Subject
to the Companies Acts and the Company’s bye-laws, directors shall serve until re-elected or their
successors are appointed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Indemnity of directors

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the directors of the Company is currently in force
and was in force throughout this year.

Directors’ rights to acquire shares and debentures

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding companies or fellow subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Company's directors {o acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements or contracts

Details of material related party transactions are disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements.
Save as disclosed, no transaction, arrangement or coniract of significance to which the Company,
or any of its holding companies, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the vyear.
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Auditors
The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of

PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

By order of the board

Direéc?(L -{'M Alk |

Hong Kong, 21 September 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Opinion
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of FTLife Insurance Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out on pages 8 to 124,
comprise:

the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;

the Company's standalone statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022;
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Qur opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group and the financial position of the Company
as at 30 June 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (*HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA").

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for

Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED {CONTINUED}
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Other information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the report of the directors, but does
not inciude the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears tc be materially missiated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

-6-
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED (CONTINUED)
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 21 September 2022
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FTLife insurance Company Limited

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Note

Income
Gross premiums
Less: Reinsurance premiums

Premiums, net of reinsurance

Interest income

Dividend and other investment income

Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains

Overlay approach adjustments

Fee and commission income

(Losses)/gains related to investments for unit-linked
contracts

Other income

o~~~

Total income

Expenses

Policy reserves, claims and benefits

Less: Reinsurance and coinsurance share of claims
and benefits

Policy reserves, claims and benefits, net of

reinsurance and coinsurance 9
Charges related to unit-linked contracts
Distribution commission and allowances

Change in deferred acquisition costs 20
Impairment losses . 10
Operating and administrative expenses 12
Finance costs 11

Total expenses

Finoncial statements for the yeor ended 30 June 2022

For the

eighteen

For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000
12,042,683 13,353,275
(391,720) (665,804)
11,651,163 12,787,471
1,826,117 2,360,512
292,171 269,029
(1,129,055) 2,909,790
1,977,457 (933,891)
724,213 1,050,523
(2,201,584) 1,872,640
21,953 10,749
13,162,435 20,326,823

{11,505,406)

(12,775,404)

297,993 320,419
(11,207,413)  (12,454,985)
2,198,752 (1,875,568)
(1,794,809)  (2,747,975)
121,949 482,419
(179,383) (56,444)
(1,017,231)  (1,388,188)
(107,624) (175,870)
(11,985,759)  (18,216,611)
1,176,676 2,110,212




FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Note
Profit before tax 12
Tax 14
Profit for the year/period attributable to equity
holders 15
Other comprehensive (loss)/income for the
year/period (after taxation and reclassification
adjustments):
ltems that may be reclassified subsequently o
profit or loss:
- Cash flow hedges: net movement in the hedging
reserve 30
- Amount reported in other comprehensive income
applying overiay approach 21
- Shadow accounting adjustment
- Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income: net movement in the
FVOCI reserve (recycling) 21

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently {o

profit or loss:

- Fair value hedges: net movement in the hedging
reserve 30

- Equity instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income: net movement in the
FVOCI reserve (non-recycling) 21

- Shadow accounting adjustment

Other comprehensive {loss)/income for the
year/period

Total comprehensive (loss)/income for the
year/period attributable to equity holders

FTLife insurance Company Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

For the
eighteen
For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,176,676 2,110,212
(83,656) (118,245)
1,093,020 1,991,967
(589,516) (346,826)
(1,977,457) 933,891
3,608,693 (916,774)
(10,530,871) 185,525
(9,489,151) (144,184)
(502,915) 502,915
346,409 (301,511)
2,671 17,451
(153,835) 218,855
(9,642,986) 74,671
(8,549,966) 2,066,638

The notes on pages 20 to 124 form part of these financial statements.

-9-



FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Note

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 16
Investment properties 17
Intangible assets 18
Deferred acquisition costs 20
Financial assets at FVPL 21
Financia! assets at FVOCI 21
Policy loans and loans to agents 22
Investments related to unit-linked contracts 25
Derivative financial instruments 30
Premiums receivable 26
Prepayments, deposits and other debtors 27
Cash and cash equivalents 28
Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-

linked contracts 37
Insurance contract liabilities related to unit-linked

contracts
Investment contract liabilities related to non-unit-

linked contracts 39
Investment contract liabilities related to unit-linked

contracts
Policyholders’ dividend and bonuses 38
Derivative financial instruments 30
Interest-bearing liabilities 36
Payables to policyholders 31
Accrued expenses and other creditors 34

Tax payable

Total liabilities

-10 -
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Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
447,334 597,011
688,879 -
157,035 151,839
6,131,460 6,009,511
8,162,553 9,036,890
40,551,014 43,852,966
643,073 571,980
8,649,161 10,770,194
64,475 1,452,920
230,053 288,365
675,515 1,248,161
5,591,137 4,497 232
71,991,689 78,477,069
42,014,271 36,810,593
673,116 806,588
5,255 5,148
8,155,056 10,136,766
3,982,172 3,661,032
13,705 796
2,241,014 2,859,775
1,776,542 1,710,791
1,097,984 1,950,071
116,992 69,961
60,076,107 58,011,521
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FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financigl statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Note
Equity
Issued capital 40
Reserves 41

Total equity attributable to equity holders

Total liabilities and equity

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
4,085,700 4,085,700
7,829,882 16,379,848
11,915,582 20,465,548
71,991,689 78,477,069

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 September 2022.

Director Director

oA
y

Signed on behalf of the Board.

The notes on pages 20 to 124 form part of this financial statements.

-1 -
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2022

Note

Assets
Property, plant and equipment 16
Investment properties 17
Intangible assets 18
Deferred acquisition costs 20
Interests in subsidiaries 19
Financial assets at FVPL 21
Financial assets at FVOCI 21
Policy loans and loans to agents 22
Investments related to unit-linked contracts 25
Derivative financial instruments 30
Premiums receivable 26
Prepayments, deposits and other deblors 27
Cash and cash equivalents 28
Total assets
Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit- 37

linked contracts
Insurance contract liabilities related to unit- linked

contracts
Investment contract liabilities related to non-unit- 39

linked contracts
Investment contract liabilities related to unit-linked

contracts
Policyholders’ dividends and bonuses 38
Derivative financial instruments 30
Amount due to a subsidiary 19
Interest-bearing liabilities 36
Payables to policyholders 31
Accrued expenses and other creditors 34

Tax payable

Total liabilities

-12 -
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At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
447,334 597,011
688,879 -
157,035 151,839
6,131,460 6,009,511
650 650
8,162,553 9,036,890
40,551,014 43,852,966
643,073 571,980
8,649,161 10,770,194
64,475 1,452,920
230,053 288,365
675,515 1,247,771
5,576,531 4,485,683
71,977,733 78,465,780
42 014,271 36,810,593
673,116 808,588
5,255 5,148
8,155,056 10,136,766
3,082,172 3,661,032
13,705 796
1,952,564 1,931,933
282,019 924,319
1,776,542 1,710,791
1,082,985 1,935,041
116,992 69,961
60,054,677 57,992,068




FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED}

AS AT 30 JUNE 2022
At At
30 June 30 June
Note 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

Equity

Issued capital 40 4,085,700 4,085,700
Reserves 41 7,837,356 16,387,112
Total equity attributable to equity holders 11,923,056 20,472,812
Total liabilities and equity 71,977,733 78,465,780

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 21 September 2022.

S 4

L1,

A
L=

s
Director // Director! 4

Signed on behalf of the Board.

The notes on pages 20 to 124 form part of this financial statements.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assefs relating to
leased properties
Amortisation of intangible assets
Loss on disposals of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposals of intangible assets
Interest income from policy loans, loans to agents
and others
Interest income from bonds, bank deposits and
cash and cash equivalents
Dividend income from listed and unlisted
investments
Dividend income related to investments for unit-
linked contracts
Net realised and unrealised capital losses/(gains)

on financial assets related to unit-linked contracts

at fair value through profit or loss

Net realised and unrealised capital losses/(gains)
on investments

Overlay approach adjustments

Impairment loss on loans to agents

Impairment loss on financial assets measured at
FVOCI

Reversal of impairment loss on loans to agents

Reversal of impairment loss on premiums
receivable

Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital

-16 -

Note

11
16

16
18

16
18

10
10

10

FTLife Insurance Company Limited

Financial statements for the yeor ended 30 June 2022

For the

eighteen

For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June

2022 2021
HK$000 HK$000
1,176,676 2,110,212
107,624 175,870
42,783 63,155
119,983 187,751
51,816 54,964

80 1,310

5,068 -
(42,894) (62,383)
(1,783,223) (2,298,129)
(288,291) (265,424)
(22,917) (15,578)
2,224,501 (1,857,064)
1,149,528 (2,889,041)
(1,977,457) 933,891
26,560 23,717
161,339 59,802
(2,995) (26,366)
(5,521) (709)
942,660 (3,804,020)



FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Note

Operating cash flows before changes in
working capital (continued)

Increase in policy loans

Increase in loans to agenis

Increase in deferred acquisition costs 20

Decrease in premiums receivable

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits and
other debtors

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from disposals of investments

Purchases of financial assets related to unit- linked
contracts at fair value through profit or loss

Proceeds from disposals of financial assets related
to unit-linked contracts at fair value through profit
or loss

Increase in payables to policyholders

Increase/{decrease) in accrued expenses and other
creditors

Increase/(decrease) in investment contract
liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts

Increase in insurance contract liabilities related to
non-unit-linked contracts

Increase in policyholders’ dividends and bonuses

(Decrease)/increase in insurance contract liabilities
related to unit-linked contracts

(Decrease)/increase in investment contract
liabilities related to unit-linked contracts

Net cash generated from/(used in) operations
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For the

eighteen

For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June

2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
942,660 (3,804,020)
(37,078) {30,660)
(57,580) (39,240)
(121,949) (482,419)
63,833 8,538
(94,690) 205,486
(19,025,603)  (25,200,870)
12,016,711 14,947,134
(3,721,899) (9,688,841)
3,574,991 10,028,992
65,751 222,849
37,490 (24,244)
107 (18)
8,815,042 8,930,825
321,140 422 515
(133,472) 119,915
(1,981,710} 1,178,570
663,744 (3,205,488)
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

For the
eighteen
For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June
Note 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest received from policy loans, loans to agents
and other loan 42,894 62,383
Interest received from bonds, deposits and cash
and cash equivalents 1,706,864 2,287,351
Interest paid on cross-currency swap agreements (46,778) (115,227)
Interest received from cross-currency swap
agreements 47,001 113,080
Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments related to non-unit-linked contracts 277,110 260,118

Dividends received from listed and unlisted

investments and investments related to unit-linked

contracts 22,917 15,576
Interest paid on cash collateral received for cross-

currency swap agreements and forward starting

swap agreements (361) (4,597)
Interest paid on interest-bearing liabilities (80,583) (126,321)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (36,625) (145,869)
Decrease in cash collateral received from

counterparties (594,099) (364,027)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating

activities 2,002,084 (1,223,021}
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 16 (7,846) (62,737)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and

equipment - 194
Acquisition of investment properties 17 (688,879) -
Purchases of intangible assets 18 (62,080) {95,584}
Decrease in pledged deposits - 10,000
Net cash used in investing activities (758,805) (148,127)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

Cash flows from financing activities

Repayment of financing under a financial
reinsurance arrangement

Capital element of lease rentals paid

Interest element of lease rentals paid

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increasef/{decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Analysis of balances of cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and bank balances

Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of
less than three months

Cash and cash equivalents attributable to
investments related to unit-linked contracts

Note

28(b)
28(b)
28(b)

28(a)
28(a)

25

FTLife Insurance Company Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

For the

eighteen

For the year months
ended 30 ended
June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
(56,457) (102,744)
(102,9086) {162,736)
(15,795) (28,710)
(175,158) (294,190)
1,068,121 (1,665,338)
4,550,300 6,215,638
5,618,421 4,550,300
5,559,660 2,047,713
31,477 1,949,519
5,591,137 4,497,232
27,284 53,068
5,618,421 4,550,300

The notes on pages 20 to 124 form part of this financial statements.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Corporate statements

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 (as amended) on 27 June 1985. The Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong is located at 15/F, NEQ, 123 Hoi Bun Road,
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company has been principally engaged in the provision of an
extensive range of whole life, endowment, unit-linked and term life insurance products to
individuals in Hong Kong as well as other insurance products which included accident,
medical and disability insurance, to individuals, and employee groups, and general
insurance products through agency and broker arrangements. The Company is also
engaged in the administration of retirement schemes. The Company does not accept
reinsurance inward business.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding company of the Company is Earning
Star Limited which is incorporated in Hong Kong. The intermediate holding company of
the Company is NWS Holdings Limited (“NWS”) which is incorporated in Bermuda and
listed in Hong Kong Stock Exchange. The ultimate holding company of the Company is
New World Development Company Limited (“NWD") which is incorporated in Hong Kong
and listed on Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (*HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards ("HKASSs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants ("HKICPA”) and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, investment in certain debt and equity securities and derivative
financial instruments, which have been measured at fair value. These financial statements
are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except where otherwise indicated.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are first effective or
available for early adoption for the current accounting period of the Group. Note 2.2
provides information on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial application
of these developments to the extent that they are relevant to the Group for the current
accounting period reflected in these consolidated financial statements. Note 2.3 provides
information on revised and new accounting standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the current accounting period.

On 23 June 2020, the board of directors of the Company resolved to change the financial
year end date of the Group from 31 December to 30 June and the accounting period ended
31 December 2020 was to be exiended to 30 June 2021. The change was to align the
Group’s financial year end date with the financial year end of NWS Holdings Limited.

Accordingly, the current financial period covers a iwelve months period from 1 July 2021
1o 30 June 2022, with the comparative financial period covering eighteen months from 1
January 2020 to 30 June 2021. Consequently, the comparable amount of the consoclidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of financial position, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statements
and related notes are not comparable in so far as they related to a shorter period than the
prior period.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Impact of amendments, new standards, interpretations issued and effective for the
year ended 30 June 2022

New and revised HKASs and HKFRSs applied for the financial year ended 30 June
2022

For the financial period ended 30 June 2022, the Group has applied the following
amendment to HKASs and HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong [nstitute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") to these consolidated financial statements.

. Amendment to HKFRS 3, Reference to Conceptual Framework

. Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment. Proceeds before
Intended Use

. Amendments to HKAS 38, Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
. Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018 - 2020

The amendments listed above did not have any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods,

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2022

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued a number of
amendments, and a new standard, HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts, which are not yet
effective for the financial period ended 30 June 2022 and which have not been adopted in
these consolidated financial statements. These developments include the following which
may be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of Liabilities 1 January 2023
as Current or Non-current

Amendments to HKAS 1 and IFRS Practice 1 January 2023
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of Accounting 1 January 2023
Estimates

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related to 1 January 2023
Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale or To be determined by the IASE

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2022 (Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations is expected o be in the period of initial
application. So far the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which may
have a significant impact on the consolidated financial statements presentation and
disclosures. Further details of the expected impacts are discussed below.

HKFRS 17, “Insurance contracts”’ (effective from 1 January 2023}

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts establishes principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of insurance contracts within the scope of the Standard. The
objective of HKFRS 17 is to ensure that an entity provides relevant information that
faithfully represents those contracts, which replaces HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts.

In contrast to the requirements in HKFRS 4, which are largely based on grandfathering
previous local accounting policies for measurement purposes, HKFRS 17 provides a
comprehensive model (the general model) for insurance contracts, supplemented by the
variable fee approach for contracts with direct participation features and the premium
allocation approach mainly for short-duration which typically applies to certain non-life
insurance contracts.

The main features of the new accounting model for insurance contracts are as follows:

. The fulfilment cash flows including the expected present value of future cash flows
and explicit risk adjustment, remeasured every reporting period;

. A contractual service margin represents the unearned profitability of the insurance
confracts and is recognised in profit or loss over the coverage period;

. Certain changes in the expected present value of future cash flows are adjusted

against the contractual service margin and thereby recognised in profit or loss over
the remaining coverage period;

. The effect of changes in discount rates will be reported in either profit or loss or
other comprehensive income, determined by an accounting policy choice;

. The recognition of insurance revenue and insurance service expenses in the
statement of comprehensive income based on the concept of services provided
during the period;

. Amounts that the policyholder will always receive, regardless of whether an insured

event happens (non-distinct investment components) are not presented in the
statement of comprehensive income, but are recognised directly on the statement
of financial position;

. Insurance services resulis are presented separately from the insurance finance
income or expenses;
» Extensive disclosures to provide information on the recognised amounts from

insurance contracts and the nature and extent of risks arising from these contracts.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Possible impact of amendments, new standards and interpretations issued but not
yet effective for the year ended 30 June 2022 (Continued)

HKFRS 17, "Insurance contracts” (effective from 1 January 2023) (Continued)

|ASB finalised and issued the amendmentis to IFRS 17 in June 2020. The amendments to
IFRS 17 provide, among other things, to:

Defer the effective date from 1 January 2021 to 1 January 2023;

Provide scope exclusions for credit card contracts and loan coniracts;

Allocate acquisition costs {o expected contract renewals;

Atfribute profit (contractual service margin) to service relating to investment
activities;

Extend applicability of the risk mitigation option;

Reduce accounting mismatches for reinsurance;

Simplify statement of financial position presentation;

Provide additional transition relief.

HKFRS 17 is effective for annual reporting pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
If the Company applies HKFRS 17 earlier, it shall disclose that fact. Early application is
permitted for Company that apply HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments on or before the date of
initial application of HKFRS 17. The Company is undertaking assessments and taking
steps to get ready for adoption of HKFRS 17.

Summary of significant accounting policies
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for business combinations by the
Group.

Inter-company {ransactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between
Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised losses are alsc eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary o ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in

the consolidated statement of profit or loss, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of financial position respectively.

-23-



2.4
(a)

(b)

(c)

FTiife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Principles of consolidation and equity accounting (Continued)
Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an equity-accounted investment equals or exceeds
its interest in the entity, including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates and joint ventures
are eliminated to the extent of the group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in note 2.4 (o).

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the
Company’s functional currency and Group’s presentation currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items included in the consolidated
financial statements of each entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions are initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling at the
dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are refransiated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the reporting date.
All differences are taken to the profit or loss for the year. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at
fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was measured.

Product classification
The Group issues contracts that transfer insurance risk or financial risk or both.

Insurance contracts are those contracts for which the Group has accepted significant
insurance risk from policyholders providing coverage at the inception of the contract. As a
general guideline, the Group determines whether it has significant insurance risk, by
comparing benefits paid with benefits payable if the insured event did not occur. The Group
also accepts financial risk on insurance contracts. Financial risk is the risk of a possible
future change in a specified interest rate, security price, commodity price, foreign
exchange rate, index of price or rate, credit rating or credit index or other variables.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures {Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Product classification (Continued)

Investment contracts are those contracts on which the Group accepts financial risk but that
do not transfer significant insurance risk.

Once a contract has been classified as an insurance contract, it remains an insurance
contract for the remainder of its lifetime, even if the insurance risk reduces significantly
during this period, unless all rights and obligations are extinguished or expired.

Insurance contract liabilities

Insurance contract liabilities represent net future policy liabilities as determined by the
appointed actuary of the Group using a net level premium approach.

The provision for life insurance contracts with fixed level premiums is calculated on the
basis of the prospective actuarial valuation method where the assumptions used depend
on the circumstances prevailing. The liability is determined as the sum of the expected
discounted value of the benefit payments, less the expected discounted value of the
theoretical premiums that would be required to meet the benefits, based on the valuation
assumptions as to discount rates, mortality and morbidity rates, lapse and partial lapse
rates, expense, inflation, policy dividend and fund growth rate that are appropriate at the
time of valuation. Changes to the liabilities at each reporting date are recorded in the profit
or loss or other comprehensive income for the year as appropriate. The liabilities on yearly
renewable premium contracts are the liabilities for the unexpired risks carried at the end
of the reporting period. The liability is derecognised when the contract expires, is
discharged or is cancelled.

For insurance with pure risk coverage such as accident benefit, dread disease, medical
insurance and disability insurance, the liabilities are the unearned gross premiums.

Investment contract liabilities
Liabilities for investment contracts are carried at fair values.

Deposits and withdrawals are recorded directly as an adjustment to the liability in the
consolidated statements of financial position.

The liability is derecognised when the contract expires, is discharged or is cancelled. For
a contract that can be cancelled by the policyholder, the fair value cannot be less than the
surrender value.

Reinsurance

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business for its insurance
contracts. Reinsurance assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies.
Recoverable amounts are estimated in a manner consistent with the insurance contract
liabilities and are in accordance with the reinsurance contract and are accounted for in the
same period as the underlying claim.

-25-



2.4
(f)

(9)

(h)

(i)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures {Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Reinsurance (Continued})

An impairment review is performed at each reporting date or more frequently when an
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when
objective evidence exists that the Group may not recover outstanding amounts under the
terms of the contract and when the impact on the amounts that the Group will receive from
the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The impairment loss is recorded in the
consolidated income statement for the year.

Reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.
Deferred acquisition costs (“DAC”)

The direct acquisition costs and a portion of indirect acquisition costs relating to the
production of new business are deferred in so far as there are sufficient margins in the
future profits of the new business to fund the amortisation of DAC. DAC include first year
commissions and other costs related to the acquisition of new business. All other
acquisition costs and all maintenance costs are expensed as and when incurred.

The Group has adopted an approach by which DAC of new business is amortised
according to the expected future premiums or expected future profits, which are projected
based on the Group’s best estimate assumptions and actual persistency.

Shadow accounting

Shadow accounting is applied to insurance contracts with discreticnary participation
feature ("DPF") where financial assets backing insurance contract liabilities are classified
as fair value through other comprehensive income. Shadow accounting is applied to
insurance contract liabilities with DPF to take into account the effect of unrealised gains or
losses on insurance liabilities cr assets that are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the same way as for a realised gain or loss recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income. Such assets or liabilities are adjusted with
corresponding charges or credits recognised directly in shareholders’ equity as a
component of the related unrealised gains and losses.

Liability adequacy test

A liability adequacy test is performed at each reporting date to verify whether the insurance
contract liabilities, net of DAC, are adequate using current estimates of future cash flows
under the insurance contracts. The liability value is adjusted if insufficient to meet future
obligations, taking into account future premiums, investment income, benefits and
expenses and cash flows from embedded options and guarantees. if the test shows that
a deficiency exists, the shortfall is immediately recorded in the consolidated income
statement for the year.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Premiums

Premiums arising from insurance contracts in respect of traditional policies and group
policies are recognised as income when they fall due, whereas those in respect of
universal life and unit-linked contracts are accounted for as they are received.

Premiums on reinsurance contracts held which related to direct insurance contracts are
recognised in profit or loss in the same accounting period as the premiums for the direct
insurance contracts to which they relate.

Fees and commission income

Insurance and investment contract policyholders are charged for policy administration
services and investment management services. The policy administration fee is
recognised as revenue over time when services are rendered. Investment management
fees related to asset management services are recognised over time when services are
rendered.

Benefits and insurance claims

Death claims and surrenders are recorded when nofifications have been received.
Maturities and annuity payments are recorded when due. Ceded reinsurance recoveries
are accounted for in the same period as the underlying claim.

Commissions

Commissions and bonuses payable to agents for the first policy year are included as a
component of DAC,

Commissions received on reinsurance policies that transfer underwriting risk are
recognised as income at the same time as the reinsurance premiums are accounted for.

Investments and other financial assets

The Group's policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries, are set out below.

Investments in debt and equity securities are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The investments are initially stated at fair
value plus directly attributable transaction costs, except for those investments measured
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. For an explanation of how the Group determines fair value of
financial instruments, see note 42(b). These investments are subsequently accounted for
as follows, depending on their classification.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures {Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified into one of the following
measurement categories:

- amortised cost, if the investment is held for the collection of contractual cash flows
which represent solely payments of principal and interest. Interest income from the
investment is calculated using the effective interest method.

- fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) recycling, if the
contractual cash flows of the investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business model whose objective is
achieved by both the collection of contractual cash flows and sale. Changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest income (calculated using the
effective interest method) and foreign exchange gains and losses. When the
investment is derecognised, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive
income is recycled from equity to profit or loss.

- fair value at profit or loss (FVPL) if the investment does not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling). Changes in the fair value
of the investment (including interest) are recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVPL unless the equity investment is not
held for trading purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designate the investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income. Such
elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if the
investment meets the definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where such an
election is made, the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income remains in the
FVOCI reserve (non-recycling} until the investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal,
the amount accumulated in the FVOCI reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained
profits. It is not recycled through profit or loss.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in organised financial markets is
determined by reference to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the
reporting date. For investments where there is no active market, fair value is determined
using valuation techniques. For details of the valuation technique employed, please refer
to note 42 to the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Credit losses and impairment of financial assets

The Group's financial assets measured at amortised cost, including policy loan, loans to
agents, deposits and other debtors, cash and cash equivalents and investment related to
unit-linked contracts as well as debt instruments at FVOCI (recycling) are subject to
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (*HKFRS 9").

The Group measures the loss allowance equal to 12-month expected credit loss, unless
when there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime expected credit loss. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 29(e) details how the
Group determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated
statement of financial position where the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts, and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and setile the liability simultaneously. The Group has alse entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still allow for the related
amounts to be set off in certain circumstances, such as bankruptcy or the termination of a
contract

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of
similar financial assets) is derecognised where:

- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

- the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed
an obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through® arrangement; or

- the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either
(a) has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
but has transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be
required to repay.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and disclosures (Continued)

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased option
(inciuding a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of
the Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the fransferred asset that the Group
may repurchase, except in the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled option
or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, where the extent of the Group’s
continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and
the option exercise price.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as cross currency swap agreements,
forward starting swap agreements and forward exchange agreements to hedge its risks
associated with foreign currency exchange rate and interest rate fluctuations. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when the
fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on derivatives that do not qualify for
hedge accounting are taken directly to the profit or loss for the year.

For details for the valuation techniques employed, please refer to note 42 to the
consolidated financial statements.

For the purpose of hedge accounting, hedges are classified as cash flow hedges when
hedging the exposure to variability in cash flows that is either attributable to a particular
risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast transaction,
or a foreign currency risk in an unrecognised firm commitment.

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group formally designates and documents the
hedge relationship to which the Group wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy for undertaking the hedge. The documentation
includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the nature
of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess the hedging instrument’s
effectiveness in offsetting the exposure to changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash
flows aitributable to the hedged risk. Such hedges are expected to be highly effective in
achieving offseiting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed on an ongoing
basis to determine that they actually have been highly effective throughout the financial
reporting periods for which they were designated.

Cash flow hedges which meet the strict criteria for hedge accounting are accounted for as
follows:

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised directly in

other comprehensive income, while the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the
profit or loss for the year.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments and hedging (Continued)

Amounts taken to other comprehensive income are transferred to the profit or loss for the
year when the hedged transaction affects the profit or loss for the year, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is recognised or when a forecast sale or
purchase occurs.

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment is no longer expected to occur, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are transferred to the profit or loss
for the year. If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised without
replacement or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is revoked, the amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income remain in equity until the forecast transaction
or firm commitment occurs.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use. Expenditure incurred after items of property,
plant and equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the profit or loss in the year/period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resuited in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property,
plant and equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis so as to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful life. The
principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

- Computer equipment 3to 5 years

- Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years or the life of the lease contract,
whichever is shorter

- Vehicles 5 years

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, the
cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each reporting date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the profit or loss in the year/period the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant
asset.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields and that is not occupied by the Group, is
classified as investment property. Investment properties of the Group are principally
freehold office buildings and car parks.

Invesiment property is initially measured at cost, including related transaction costs and
where applicable borrowing costs and subsequently remeasured at fair value. Changes in
fair values are recognised in profit or loss as part of other income.

Leased assets

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease.
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to obtain
substantiaily all of the economic benefits from that use.

As a lessor

The Group recognised the rental income as other income (see note 2.4(al)) in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

For the lease contract which contains termination value for any early termination based on
the termination date, the Group will initially recognise the lease benefits guarantee as an
unlisted debt instruments based cn the terms and conditions of the operating leases. The
debt instruments will then be amortised over the remaining lease terms.

As a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-lease component(s), the Group
account for lease component and non-lease components separately for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognise a right-of-use asset and a right-
of- use asset and a lease liability, except for short-term leases that have a lease term of
12 months or less and leases of low-value assets which, for the Group, are primarily
laptops, office furniture and property, plant and machinery with remaining lease term of 12
months or less. When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value asset, the
Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis. The lease
payments associated with those leases with those leases which are not capitalised are
recognised as an expense in the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, using a relevant
incremental borrowing rate. After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the effective interest method.
Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Leased assets (Continued)
As a lessee (continued)

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised is initially measured at cost,
which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made at
or before the commencement date, and any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable,
the cost of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located, discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see notes 2.4 {(w)).

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising
from a change in an index or rate, or there is a change in the Group's estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or there a change
arising from the reassessment of whether the company will be reasonably certain to
exercise a purchase, extension or termination option. When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

In the consolidated statement of financial position, the Group presents right-of-use assets
within the same line item as similar underlying assets and presents lease liabilities
separately.

Intangible assets

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if the product or process is
technically and commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure capitalised includes the costs of
materials, direct labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing costs,
where applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses (see note 2.4(w)). Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Other intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note
2.4{v)). Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
intangible assets

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from the date they are avaiiable for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

- Computer software 3 to 5 years or the estimated useful life,
whichever is shorter

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group's non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets,
and deferred acquisition costs arising from the contractual rights under insurance
contracts, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication
of impairment.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset
is required (other than financial assets), the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in
use and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted fo their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the profit or loss for the year in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired assets.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is esiimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill and certain financial assets is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount
of that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the profit
or loss in the year/period in which it arises.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Premiums receivable

Premiums receivable represent premiums which are due for payment. The Group normally
allows policyholders to make payment within a grace period of one month from the due
date. The grace period may be extended by management on a discretionary basis.
Insurance policies continue to remain in force if default premiums are settled before the
expiry of the grace period.

Premiums receivable are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method
less provision for impairment.

Prepayments

Prepayments made in connection with the recruitment of agents are capitalised and
amortised to the profit or loss over the term of the contract with the agent.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafis which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the statements of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term depaosits, which are not restricted as
to use and not attributable to investments related to unit-linked contracts.

Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit losses (“ECL") in accordance
with the policy set out in note 2.4(o).

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including interest-bearing notes and
borrowings)

Financial liabilities including payables to policyholders, other payables, interest-bearing
notes, and policyholders’ dividends and bonuses are initially stated at fair value less
directly attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognised within
“‘Finance costs” in the profit or loss for the year.

Gains and losses are recognised in the profit or loss for the year when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the amortisation process.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss for the year.
The net fair value gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss for the year does not include
any interest charged on these financial liabilities.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded derivatives, the entire hybrid contract
may be designated as a financial liability at fair value through profit or loss, except where
the embedded derivative does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is clear that
separation of the embedded derivative is prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit
or loss if the following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities or
recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; (ii) the liabilities are part of a
group of financial liabilities which are managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documentied risk management strategy; or (iii) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that would need to be separately
recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or maodification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the profit or loss for the year.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Preference share capital

Preference share capital is classified as equity if it is non-redeemable, or redeemable only
at the Company's option, and any dividends are discretionary. Dividends on preference
share capital classified as equity are recognised as distributions within equity.

Preference share capital is classified as a liability if it is redeemable on a specific date or
at the option of the shareholders, or if dividend payments are not discretionary. The liability
is recognised in accordance with the Group's policy for interest-bearing borrowings and
accordingly dividends thereon are recognised on an accrual basis in statement of
comprehensive income as part of finance costs.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within the equity section of the statement of financial position, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because the Company’'s
bye-laws grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediaiely as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans.

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions to defined contribution
retirement plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees. Where payment or settlement is
deferred and the effect would be material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Income tax is recognised in the profit or loss for the year/period, or in other comprehensive
income or equity if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in other comprehensive income or equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary differences as at the

reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounis
for financial reporting purposes.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Income tax {continued)
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

- where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

- where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

- in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred {ax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Conversely, any previously
unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply
to the year/period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists
to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) has arisen as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be required

to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.
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Application of Hong Kong Accounting Standards and Hong Kong Financial
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Summary of significant accounting policies {Continued)

Provisions {continued)

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is the
present value at the reporting date of the future expenditures expected to be reguired fo
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the profit or loss for the year/period.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest method by
applying the rate that discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost or FVOCI (recycling) that are credit-
impaired, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.
For credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the asset (see note 2.4(0)).
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established.

Realised gains and losses on investments

Realised gains and losses on investments are determined as the difference between the
sales proceeds and cost or amortised cost. For equity securities and interests in
investment funds, the cost is determined by using a weighted average per portfolio.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
terms of the lease agreements.

Borrowing costs
Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the Group if that
person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(ii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the Group's
parent.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)
Related parties {continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions applies:

(i) The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which means
that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

(ii) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate
or joint venture of a member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(iii) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party;

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an
associate of the third entity;

v) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees
of either the Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlied by a person identified in (a);

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a
member of the key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of
the entity); or

(viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the Group or to the Group's parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Going Concern

Taking into consideration the expected settlement pattern for insurance contract liabilities,
it is reasonable to expect that the Group will have adequate resources to meet is liabilities
in the next 12 months as and when they fall due and to continue in operational existence
for the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the Group continues to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

Comparative figures

Comparative figures have been adjusted, where necessary, to comfort to the basis of
presentation and the classification used in the current year.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosures as at the reporting date.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actuai results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods,

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgements, apart from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

Product classification

Contracts are classified as insurance contracts where they transfer significant insurance
risk from the holder of the contract to the Group. The Group’s accounting policy for the
classification of insurance and investment contracts is discussed in more detail in note
2.4(c).

There are a number of contracts sold where the Group exercises judgement about the
level of insurance risk transferred. Typically, these are contracts which contain a significant
savings component. The level of insurance risk is assessed by considering whether there
are any scenarios with commercial substance in which the Group is required to pay
significant additional benefits. These benefits are those which exceed the amounts
payable if no insured event were to occur. These additional amounts include claims liability
and assessment costs, but exclude the loss of the ability to charge the holder of the
contract for future services.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are discussed below.

Life insurance contract liabilities

The estimation of the ultimate liabilities arising from claims made under life insurance
contracts is the Group’s most critical accounting estimate. There are sources of uncertainty
that need to be considered in the estimation of the liabilities that the Group will ultimately
pay for those claims.

The valuation of insurance contract liabilities requires the use of appropriate actuarial
methodologies and also various econcmic and operational assumptions. The assumptions
used in measuring the insurance contract liabilities include discount rates, mortality and
morbidity rates, lapse and partial lapse rates, persistency, expenses, infiation, policy
dividend and fund growth rate. Estimates are made as to the expected number of deaths
for each of the years in which the Group is exposed to risk. The Group bases these
estimates on standard industry and national mortality tables that reflect historical mortality
experience, adjusted, where appropriate, to reflect the Group's unique risk exposure. The
estimated number of deaths determines the value of possible future benefits to be paid out
which will be factored into ensuring sufficient cover by reserves, which in return is
monitored against the current and future premiums. Lapse rates are based on the historical
experience of the Group. Expenses are based on the renewal compensation cost structure
and the maintenance expenses level of the Group. Discount rates are based on the
investment strategy of the Group, with due regard to the expected recurring return on
assets backing the insurance contracts. ‘

Estimates for discount rates, mortality rates, lapse rates and expenses are determined at
the inception of the contract and are used to calculate the liability over the term of the
confract. At each reporting date, these estimates are reassessed for adequacy and
changes will be reflected in adjustments to the liability.

The carrying value at the reporiing date of the current year life insurance contract liabilities,
net of policyholders’ dividends and bonuses was HK$42,687,387,000 (As at 30 June 2021:
HK$37,617,181,000).

DAC

The Group has adopted an approach by which DAC of new business is amortised
according to the expected future premiums or expected future profits, which are projected
based on the Group’s best estimate assumptions, and actual persistency. Assumptions as
to projected future premiums or expected future profits are made at the date of policy issue
and are applied during the lives of the contracts consistently. Judgemenis are exercised
in making appropriate estimate of future premiums or expected future profits.
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Significant accounting judgements and estimates (Continued})
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and derivative financial instruments determined using
valuation techniques

Fair value, in the absence of an active market, is estimated by using valuation techniques,
such as recent arm’s length transactions, reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same, a discounted cash flow analysis and/or option
pricing models. For reference to similar instruments, instruments must have similar credit
ratings.

For a discounted cash flow analysis, estimated future cash flows and discount rates are
based on current market information and rates applicable to financial instruments with
similar yields, credit quality and maturity characteristics. Estimated future cash flows are
influenced by factors such as economic conditions (including country-specific risks),
concentrations in specific industries, types of instruments or currencies, market liquidity
and financial conditions of counterparties. Discount rates are influenced by risk-free
interest rates and credit risk.

For an option pricing model, before a discounted cash flow analysis is performed,
simulations are projected based on historical observation trends as well as current market
rates and information that are applicable to the underlying financial instrument.

The carrying values at the reporting date of financial assets measured at fair value,
derivative financial assets and derivative financial liabilities are HK$58,024,323,000,
HK$64,475,000, and HK$13,705,000. (As at 30 June 2021: HK$63,222,976,000,
HK$1,452,920,000, and HK$796,000 respectively).

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assess whether there are any indicators of impairment for all non-financial
assets at each reporting date. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are
tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable.

When value in use calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected

future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of these cash flows.

-43-



(b}

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financiol statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant accounting judgements and estimates (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Expected credit loss on financial assets

The Group is required to calculate expected credit losses of financial assets measured at
amortised cost and debt securities measured at FVOCI (recycling) under HKFRS 9 (see
note 2.4{(0)). Factors that determine expected credit loss are credit quality, probability of
default ("PD"), loss given default ("LGD") and forecast of economic growth factor.

To determine lifetime and 12-month PD, the Group refers to PD tables supplied by
Moody's, which are derived based on default history of obligors with the same credit rating.
The Group has considered the forward looking information by incorporated a set of
weighted average different economic scenarios developed by Moody’s.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Group estimates LGD for
Stage 1 financial assets based on recovery rates from Moody’s recovery study. As at 30
June 2021, amounts due from former intermediate holding companies and certain bonds
issued by a former fellow subsidiary, which are Stage 2 financial assets, management
considers there is reasonable and supportable information to rebut the presumption that
there was a default in payment for the purpose of applying HKFRS 9. Management
determines the LGD estimates for these financial assets to be immaterial after considering
certain factors including successful sale of the Group and credit risk protection available
from its former group companies.

Valuation of investment properties

Commercial investment properties are measured at fair value and based on active market
prices, adjusted if necessary for any difference in nature, location or condition of the
specific asset.

Current economic developments and uncertainties influence the valuation of our
investment properties. The methods and significant assumptions applied in determining
the fair value of our investment properties are mainly due to active market prices.

These market values are based on valuations by independent external valuation experts.
The valuation is based on an open market value, supported by market evidence in which
assets can be exchanged between a knowledgeable willing buyer and a knowledgeable
willing seiler in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.

As the carparks were newly acquired which is close to the financial year ended 30 June
2022, the purchase costs were referenced to recent market transactions and the Company
perceived the purchase cost as the latest market value. The Group will engage
independent external valuation experts {0 assess the latest valuation in December 2022,
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4 Premiums, net of reinsurance

Gross premiums on life insurance contracts:
Non-unit-linked
Unit-linked

Reinsurers’ share of life insurance contracts
premiums: .

Non-unit-linked

Unit-linked

Premiums, net of reinsurance

Further analysis of gross premiums is as follows:

Single premiums
First year premiums
Renewal premiums

Gross premiums on life insurance contracts
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Group

For the

For the eighteen
year months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
11,799,511 13,020,808
243,372 332,467
12,042,883 13,353,275
(387,775) (560,476)
(3,945) (5,328)
(391,720) (565,804)
11,651,163 12,787,471

Group

For the

For the eighteen
year months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
4,125,153 2,139,673
1,179,153 2,196,440
6,738,577 9,017,162
12,042,883 13,353,275
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Interest income

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

During the year/period, interest income is broken down as follows:

Interest income from listed bonds

Interest income from unlisted bonds

Interest income from bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents

Interest income from policy loans, loans to agents and
others

Others

Total interest income

Dividend and other investment income

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,680,034 2,102,122
101,732 178,709
753 16,272
42,894 62,383
704 1,026
1,826,117 2,360,512

The details of dividend and other investment income during the year/period are shown

below:

Dividend income from listed investments
Dividend income from unlisted investments
Rebate income from investments

Total dividend and other investment income

- 46 -

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
158,125 159,350
130,166 106,074
3,880 3,605
292,171 269,029
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Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financiol statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

During the year/period, net realised and unrealised {losses)/gains are broken down as

follows:

Realised and unrealised (losses)/gains on
investments:
Listed financial assets at FVOCI (recycling)
Unlisted financial assets at FVOCI (recycling)
Listed financial assets at FVPL
Unlisted financial assets at FVPL

Total realised and unrealised (losses)/gains on
investments

Other realised and unrealised gains

Total realised and unrealised (losses)/gains

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
162,119 1,642,552
9,054 22,121
(1,011,827) 816,638
(308,874) 407,730
(1,149,528) 2,889,041
20,473 20,749
(1,129,055) 2,909,790

For financial assets at FVPL being accounted under the overlay approach, the amounts
charged to the consolidated income statements reported with and without overlay
adjustments for the year ended 30 June 2022 are stated as below.

The Group have applied the overlay adjustments for those financial assets classified as
Available-for-Sale under HKAS 39 but they are classified as FVPL under HKFRS 9, which
includes equity instruments and investment funds which were not initially designated as

FVOCL

Realised and unrealised capital (losses)/gains on
investments:

Amount reported in profit or loss applying HKFRS 9,
financial assets to which overlay approach is applied

Overlay approach adjustment

Amount that would have been reported in profit or loss

if HKAS 39 had been applied, financial assets to
which overlay approach is applied
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Group

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

(1,086,468) 1,170,500
1,977,457 (933,891)

890,989 236,609
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Fee and commission income

FTLife insurance Compuany Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

During the year/period, fee and commission income is broken down as follows:

Reinsurance commission income

Fee income on insurance and investment contracts
Fee on referral business and commission income for
general insurance and Mandatory Provident Fund

(HMPF")
QOthers

Total fee and commission income

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
85,435 59,924
566,814 886,945
10,213 13,169
61,751 90,485
724,213 1,050,523

Policy reserves, claims and benefits, net of reinsurance

The details of policy reserves, claims and benefits, net of reinsurance are shown below:

Claims

Surrenders, annuities and maturities
Policyholders’ dividends and interests
Incentives to policyholders

Increase in insurance contract liabilities - Gross

Total policy reserves, claims and benefits

Reinsurers’ and coinsurers’ share of claims
Reinsurers’ and coinsurers' share of benefits
Decrease in insurance contract liabilities

- reinsurance and coinsurance

Total reinsurers' and coinsurers’ share of reserves,

claims and benefits

Total policy reserves, claims and benefits, net of
reinsurance
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Group

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

1,074,228 1,247,051

1,297,136 1,702,466

389,808 539,023

289,295 354,825

8,454,939 8,932,039

11,505,406 12,775,404
(341,767) (338,836)
38,945 (42,054)

4,829 60,471
(297,993) (320,419)

11,207,413 12,454,985
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Impairment losses

During the year/period, impairment losses are broken down as follows:

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Impairment loss on loans to agents (note 24 and
note 29 (e)) 26,560 23,717
Impairment loss on financial assets at FVOCI
{note 29 (e}} 161,339 59,802
Reversal of impairment [oss on premiums
receivable (note 26) (5,521) (709)
Reversal of impairment loss on loans to agents
(note 24 and note 29 (e)) (2,995) (26,366)
Total impairment losses 179,383 56,444
Finance costs
During the year/period, finance costs are broken down as follows:
Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Interest expense on interest-bearing notes 83,410 124,144
Net interest (income)/expense on cross currency
swap agreements (note (i)) (198) 1,031
fnterest on financing received under a financial
reinsurance arrangement {note (ii) and note 28(b)) 8,256 17,388
Interest on cash collateral received for cross currency
swap agreements and forward starting swap
agreements (note (i) 361 4,597
Interest expense on lease liabilities (note 28(b)) 15,795 28,710
107,624 175,870
Notes:
i Please refer to note 30 to the consolidated financial statements for information on

financial derivative arrangements the Group has entered into.

(ii) Please refer to note 36 to the consolidated financial statements for information on
the financial reinsurance arrangement the Group has entered into.
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Profit before tax

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rental income from operating leases (note 17(i}) (1,756) -
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets 5,148 1,310
Auditors’ remuneration 2,591 3,008
Depreciation from property, plant and equipment (note
16) 162,766 250,906
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 18) 51,816 54,964
Net foreign exchange (29,051) (22,059)
Amortisation of deferred acquisition costs (note (i) and
note 20) 1,024,382 1,512,356
Short term lease rentals on land and buildings - 758
Direct operating expenses from investment properties
that generated rental income (note 17(i)) 654 -
Employee benefit expenses (including directors’
remuneration {note 13)):
- Wages and salaries 445,005 568,466
- Net retirement benefit scheme contributions for
employees 21,197 30,928
- Other benefits 58,839 59,436
Total employee benefit expenses 525,041 658,830
Net retirement benefit scheme contributions for agents 20,013 31,749
Note
(i) The amortisation of deferred acquisition costs for the year/period is inciuded in

“Change in deferred acquisition costs” in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, and is disclosed in note 20 to the consclidated financial
statements.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Directors’ remuneration

Directors’ remuneration during the year/period is as follows:

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Executive and non-executive directors:
Fees 4,310 4,410
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 39,793 55,776
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes 304 1,414
44 407 61,600

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year ended 30 June 2022 (for eighteen months ended 30 June
2021: HK$NIl). The aggregate amount of the two highest paid executive directors was
HK$40,097,000 (three highest paid executive directors for the eighteen months ended 30
June 2021: HK$57,190,000).

Tax

Hong Kong profits fax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (for the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2021: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 30
June 2022 arising in Hong Kong where the Group operates.

The assessable profits of the Group are computed in accordance with the special
provisions of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue Ordinance. Tax for the long term insurance
business, as defined by the Inland Revenue Ordinance, is computed at a rate of 16.5%
(for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: 16.5%) of 5% of net premiums (gross
premiums received less reinsurance premiums ceded) of the life insurance business in
accordance with Section 23(1){a) of the Inland Revenue Ordinance.

Taxes on assessable profits have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.

Group
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current - Hong Kong
Current tax provision and total tax charge for the year/
period 106,595 118,245
Adjustments for current tax cf prior years (22,939) -
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Tax (Continued)

For the year ended 30 For the eighteen months
June 2022 ended 30 June 2021
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
Profit before tax 1,176,676 2,110,212
Tax at the statutory rate 194,151 16.5 348,185 16.5
Tax on 5% of net premiums
of life insurance business 104,928 8.9 114,033 5.4
Adjustments for current tax
of prior years (22,939) (1.9) - -
Results of life insurance
business and other
businesses not taxable at
the statutory rate (192,484) (16.4) (343,973) (16.3)
Tax charge at the Group’s
effective rate 83,656 7.1 118,245 5.6

The Group has accumulated tax losses arising in Hong Kong of HK$4,130,000 (for the
eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: HK$3,942,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these losses as they have
arisen in certain subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is not
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses can
be utilised.

Profit for the year/period attributable to equity holders
The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders for the year ended 30 June 2022
includes a profit of HK$1,093,230,000 (for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021:

HK$1,992,134,000) which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 41(b)).
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Property, plant and equipment

At 30 June 2022
Group and Company
Right-of-use
Furniture, assets of
Computer fixtures and leased
equipment Vehicles equipment properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 July 2021:
Cost 52,073 - 192,940 720,891 965,904
Accumulated depreciation (25,008) - (97,433) {246,452) (368,893}
Net carrying amount 27,065 - 95,507 474,439 587,011
At 1 July 2021, net of
accumulated
depreciation 27,065 - 95,507 474,439 597,011
Additions 9,913 - 380 23,171 33,464
Adjustments - - (2,447) - (2,447)
Reinstatement cost
remeasure - - - (17,848) (17,848)
Depreciation charge (8,551) - {34,232) (119,983) {162,766)
Disposals, net of
accumulated depreciation - - (80) - (80)
At 30 June 2022, net of
accurnulated
depreciation 28,427 - 59,128 359,779 447,334
At 30 June 2022:
Cost 61,801 - 190,680 726,214 978,695
Accumulated depreciation (33,374) - {131,552) (366,435) (531,361)
Net carrying amount 28,427 - 59,128 359,779 447,334

-53-



16

17

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021
Group and Company
Right-of-use
Furniture, assets of
Computer fixtures and leased
equipment Vehicles equipment properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2020:
Cost 30,139 589 169,529 649,918 850,175
Accumulated depreciation (17,039) (167) {58,557) (127,334) (203,097)
Net carrying amount 13,100 422 110,972 522,584 647,078
At 1 January 2020, net of
accumulated
depreciation 13,100 422 110,972 522,584 647,078
Additions 23,201 - 39,536 137,179 199,916
Reinstatement cost
remeasure - - - 2,427 2,427
Depreciation charge {(9,091) (39) (54,025) (187,751) {250,908)
Disposals, net of
accumulated depreciation {145} (383) (976) - (1,504)
At 30 June 2021, net of
accumulated
depreciation 27,0685 - 95,507 474,439 597,011
At 30 June 2021:
Cost 52,073 - 192,940 720,891 965,904
Accumulated depreciation {25,008} - {97,433) (246,452) (368,893)
Net carrying amount 27,065 - 95,507 474,439 597,011
Investment properties
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
At fair value
Opening balance at 1 July/1 January - -
Acquisitions 688,879 -
At year/period end 688,879 -
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment properties (Continued)

On 31 May 2022, the Group purchased units of commercial properties for long-term rental
yields. The cost of acquisition amounted to HK$661,779,000. On 20 June 2022, the Group
purchased units of carparks with acquisition cost amounted to HK$27,100,000.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Amounts charging/(crediting) recognised in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for investment properties:

For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Rental income from operating leases
recognised in other income (1,756) -
Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental income 654 -

Valuation processes

The Group measures its investment properties at fair value. The commercial
properties were revalued by Knight Frank Petty Limited, an independent qualified
valuer, who hold recognised relevant professional qualification and have recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties valued, at
30 June 2022 on an open market value basis.

The Group’s management reviews the valuations performed by the independent
valuer for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and
results are held between the management and the independent valuer at least
once every six months, which aligns with NWS Holdings Limited's interim and
annual reporting dates.

Valuation techniques

Fair values of investment properties for commercia! office buildings and carparks
in Hong Kong are generally derived using market approach. The rationale of this
approach is to directly relate the market comparable fransactions with the
properties to determine the market value. Adjustments will be applied to the said
comparable transactions to adjust for differences between the properties and the
comparable fransactions. Adjustment factors therefore may include location,
environment and the like.

All resulting fair value estimates for investment properties are included in level 3.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year and there were
no transfers among the fair value hierarchy during the year.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Investment properties (Continued)

(iv)

Valuation inputs and refationships to fair value

At

At 30 June 2022

30 June 2022 Range of significant

Investment Fair Value Valuation Unobservable unobservable

properties HK$'000 methods inputs inputs

Hong Kong 661,779 Sales  Property specific -10% to 10%
Commercial comparison  adjusting factors

properties
Carparks 27,100 Sales Unit price Not applicable
comparison

Fair values of the commercial investment properties in Hong Kong are generally
derived using the sales comparison method. This valuation method is based on
comparing the properties to be valued directly with other comparable properties
transacted and/or asking prices. Property specific adjusting factors include but not
limited to location, size, age, condition, aspect, quality, ancillary facilities are
required to allow for any qualitative differences that may affect the price likely to be
achieved by the properties under consideration. The valuations of commercial
investment properties were based on the economic, market and other conditions
as they exist on, and with information available to management as of 30 June 2022.

As the carparks were newly acquired on 20 June 2022 which is close to the
financial year ended 30 June 2022, the purchase costs were referenced to recent
market fransactions and the Company perceived the purchase cost as the latest
market value. The next valuation will be performed in December 2022,

Intangible assets

Group and Company

Computer software

HK$'000

At 1 July 2021:
Cost 441,930
Accumulated amortisation (290,091)
Net carrying amount 151,839
At 1 July 2021, net of accumulated amortisation 151,839
Additions 62,080
Amortisation during the period (51,816)
Disposals, net of accumulated amortisation (5,068)
At 30 June 2022, net of accumulated amortisation 157,035
At 30 June 2022;
Cost 497,729
Accumulated amortisation {340,694)
Net carrying amount 167,035
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intangible assets (Continued)

Group and Company (Continued)

Computer
software
HK$'000
At 1 January 2020:
Cost 346,418
Accumulated amortisation (235,199)
Net carrying amount 111,219
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated amortisation 111,219
Additions 95,584
Amortisation during the period (54,964)
At 30 June 2021, net of accumulated amortisation 151,839
At 30 June 2021:
Cost 441,930
Accumulated amortisation (290,091)
Net carrying amount 151,839
Interests in subsidiaries and amount due to a subsidiary
Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted shares, at cost 650 650
Amount due to a subsidiary (1,952,564) (1,931,933)

On 26 April 2013, a loan of US$250,000,000 was obtained from a subsidiary and is
unsecured, interest-bearing at 4.215% per annum and repayable on 25 April 2023. Interest
is payable semi-annually in arrears on 25 April and 25 October in each year.

The loan of US$250,000,000 has a fair value approximately of HK$1,974,209,000 as at
30 June 2022 (As at 30 June 2021: HK$2,030,598,000) and is classified as a level 2
financial instrument in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value of the loan is determined
based on its discounted cashflow with the credit risk of the issuer taken into consideration.
Further details of fair value classification are discussed in note 42(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

-57 -



FTLife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Interests in subsidiaries and amount due to a subsidiary (Continued)

Particulars of all subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Nominal
incorporation  value of Percentage of equity
and issued share attributable to the Principal
Name operations capital Company activities
Direct Indirect
FTL Capital British Virgin  Ordinary 100% - Bond
Limited Islands US$1 issuance
FTL Wealth Hong Kong Ordinary 100% - Inactive
Management HK$650,000
{HK) Limited

Deferred acquisition costs

Group and Company

For the

For the eighfeen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 6,009,511 5,627,092
Additions: New business 1,146,331 1,994,775
Less: Amortisation (note 12) {1,024,382) (1,512,356)
Change in deferred acquisition costs 121,949 482,419
At 30 June 6,131,460 6,009,511

The maturity profile for DAC is stated as below:

Group and Company

At At

30 Jupe 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

To be amortised within one year 958,413 947,804
To be amortised after one year 5,173,047 5,061,707
6,131,460 6,009,511
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Deferred acquisition costs (Continued)

A sensitivity analysis for DAC is provided below:

Group and Company

21

Decrease in
Assumption profit Decrease
change before tax in equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
30 June 2022
Lapse +20% (108,257) (108,257)
Mortality +10% (1,936) {1,936)
Investment return -0.5% {20,793) {(20,793)
30 June 2021
Lapse +20% (88,026) (88,026)
Mortality +10% (1,787) (1,787)
Investment return -0.5% (17,674) (17,674)
Financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets measured at FVOCI {recycling)
Fixed rate bonds, at market value:
Listed - government bonds 6,989,447 2,822,708
Listed - others 28,472,390 35,496,060
Unlisted - others 2,316,522 2,898,143
37,778,359 41,216,911
Variable rate bonds, at market value:
Listed - others 1,699,544 974,180
Unlisted - government bonds 23,100 27,244
Unlisted - others 29,046 39,182
1,751,690 1,040,606
Total financial assets at FVOCI (recycling) 39,530,049 42,257,517
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Financial assets at FVYOCI and FVPL (Continued)

Financial assets measured at FVOCI (non-recycling)
Equities, at fair value:
Listed

Total financial assets at FVOC! (non-recycling)

Total financial assets at FVOCI (recycling and non-
recycling)

Financial assets measured at FVPL
Listed
Unlisted

Interests in investment funds, at fair value
Total financial assets at FVPL

Total financial assets at FVOCI and FVPL

FTLife Insurance Company Limited

Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,020,965 1,595,449
1,020,965 1,595,449
40,551,014 43,852,066
1,776,006 692,449
2,498,145 1,130,780
4,274,151 1,823,229
3,888,402 7,213,661
8,162,553 9,036,890
48,713,567 52,889,856

The fair value of debt securities (except leasing benefits) and interests in investment funds
are based on quoted market prices at year /period end. Leasing benefits are valued based

on the discounted rental income cash flows.

A maturity profile of the bonds measured at FVOCI as at the reporting date is as follows:

With a contractual maturity of:

One year or less

Two years or less but over one year
Three years or less but over two years
Four years or less but over three years
Five years or less but over four years
Over five years

Total bonds

-80 -

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
2,027,160 391,612
155,875 535,722
289,456 185,308
260,134 398,080
205,769 544,651
36,591,655 40,202 144
39,530,049 42,257,517
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Financial assets at FYOCI and FVPL (Continued)

Details for the movements in FVOCI reserve (recycling) and FVOCI reserve (non-

recycling) being recognised in other comprehensive income are as follows:

Group and Company

For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Realised gains included in profit or loss (note 7) (171,173) (1,664,673)
Impairment loss (including foreign exchange) included
in profit or loss (note 29 (e)) 162,766 59,877
Net movement in FVVOCI reserve (recycling) (10,522,464) 1,790,321
Overlay approach adjustments in profit or loss (note 7) (1,977,457) 933,891
Net movement in FVOCI reserve (non-recycling)
recognised in other comprehensive income 346,408 (301,511)
Net movement in financial assets during the
year/period recognised in other comprehensive
income (12,161,919) 817,905

At 30 June 2022 and 30 June 2021, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets

being accounted for under the overlay approach are shown as below.

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Equities, at fair value
- Listed 1,549,870 355,405
- Unlisted 2,406,607 1,130,780
Total equities 3,956,477 1,486,185
Interests in investment funds, at fair value
- Listed 2,349,189 3,983,219
- Unlisted 1,184,259 2,749,155
Toftal interests in investment funds 3,533,448 6,732,374
Total financial assets measured at FVPL accounied
for under the overlay approach 7,489,925 8,218,559
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Policy loans and loans to agents

Group and Company
At

At

30 June 30 June

Note 2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Policy loans 23 543,428 506,350
Loans to agents 24 99,645 65,630
Total policy loans and loans to agents 643,073 571,980

Policy loans

The policy loans are made to policyholders and are secured by the policies’ cash surrender
value. Policy loans are repayable at the discretion of the policyholders as long as the
interest plus the principal of the loans do not equal or exceed the cash value or until the
policy matures. The policy loans bear interest at a rate of 8.0% (2021: 8.5%) per annum
for the year. The directors consider that the fair value of the loans approximately equals to
the corresponding carrying value.

Loans to agents

The Group provides loans to agents which bear interest at the'prevailing bank lending
rates, and some are repayable by monthly instalments.

Group and Company
At

At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Loans to agents 179,884 122,304
Loss allowance (80,239} (566,674)
Total loans to agents, net of loss allowance 99,645 65,630

The movements in loss allowance account in respect of loans to agents are as follows:

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 56,674 64,797
Impairment loss recognised (note 10) 26,560 23,717
Reversal of impairment loss (note 10) (2,995) (26,366)
Written-off - (5,474)
At 30 June 80,239 56,674
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For those loans to agents net of loss allowance, an ageing analysis is as follows:

Not yet past due
Within one month past due
More than one month past due

Total loans to agents, net of loss allowance

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
68,636 60,829
11,579 3,703
19,430 1,098

99,645 65,630

The Group measures loss allowances for loans to agents at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs, which is calculated using a provision matrix. The Group assesses credit quality of
individual loan to agent based on historical credit loss experience and the status of debt

collection.

The carrying amount of loans to agents is expected to be recovered as below:

Within one year

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
99,645 65,630

The directors consider that the fair value of the loans fo agents approximately equals {he

corresponding carrying value.

Investments related to unit-linked contracts

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

- Interests in investment funds, at fair value
- Cash and cash equivalents

Total investments related to unit-linked contracts
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Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

8,621,877 10,717,126
27,284 53,068

8,649,161 10,770,194
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Premiums receivable

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Premiums receivable 237,989 301,814
Provision for impairment {7,936) (13,449)
Total premiums receivable, net of impairment 230,053 288,365

The movement in provision for impairment of premiums receivable is as follows:

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 13,449 14,124
Reversal of impairment loss (note 10) {(5,521) (709)
Exchange realignment 8 34
At 30 June 7,936 13,449

The above provision for impairment is assessed on a pooled basis based on the past
experience related to policyholders in default of settlement.

For these premiums receivable that are not considered to be impaired, they are all less
than 3 months past due and are expected to be settled within the next twelve months.
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Prepayments, deposits and other debtors

Prepayments (Note)

Accrued interest/dividend income on:

- Cross currency swap agreements (note 30)

- equities and interests in investment funds

- others

Deposits

Reinsurance assets:

- reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
(note 37)

- other receivables from reinsurers

Other debtors

Prepayments (Note)

Accrued interest/dividend income on:

- Cross currency swap agreements (note 30)

- equities and interests in investment funds

- others

Deposits

Reinsurance asset:

- reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
(note 37)

- othier receivables from reinsurers

QOther debtors

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000
261,599 273,364
10,347 13,614
20,113 8,228
42 44
48,533 47 914
1,685 1,649
256,907 155,398
76,289 747,950
675,515 1,248,161

Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
261,599 273,364
10,347 13,614
20,113 8,228
42 44
48,533 47 914
1,685 1,649
256,907 155,398
76,289 747,560
675,515 1,247,771

Note: Included in prepayments mainly are advances to agents and other intermediaries
of HK$142,768,000 (At 30 June 2021: HK$189,021,000) and prepayments to
software and systems under development of HK$78,237,000 (At 30 June 2021:

HK$38,837,000), which are not yet past due.
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The maturity profile of the carrying amount of the advances to agents and other

intermediaries is stated as below:

To be amortised within one year
To be amortised after one year

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
60,372 100,225
82,396 88,796
142,768 189,021

Except for the above, other carrying amount of prepayments, deposits and other debtors

is to be settled within the next twelve months.

The directors consider that the fair value of the advances to agents and other
intermediaries approximately equals the corresponding carrying value.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise:

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and bank balances
Time deposits

Cash and cash equivalents

Group

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
5,559,660 2,547,713
31,477 1,849,519
5,591,137 4,497,232

Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
5,545,054 2,536,164
31,477 1,949,519
5,676,531 4,485,683
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (Continued)

A maturity profile of the time deposits as at the reporting date is as follows:

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
With an original maturity of:
Three months or less 31,477 1,849,519

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates. Short term
fime deposits are made for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and the Company, and earn
interest at the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the cash
and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities
for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s
consolidated cash flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

Financial
reinsurance Lease
arrangement liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
{Note 36) (Note 35)
At 1 July 2021 283,483 500,051 783,534
Changes from financing cash
flows:
Repayment of financing under a
financial reinsurance arrangement (56,457) - (56,457)
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (102,906) (102,906)
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (15,795) (15,795)
Total changes from financing cash
flows (56,457) (118,701) (175,158)
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28 Cash and cash equivalents {Continued)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: (Continued)
Financial
reinsurance Lease
arrangement liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 36) {Note 35)
Other changes:
Interest expenses (note 11) 8,256 15,795 24,0561
Increase in lease liabilities from new
leased properties - 23,021 23,021
Reinstatement cost remeasure for
the right-of-use assets of leased
properties (note 16) - (17,848) (17,848)
Total other changes 8,256 20,968 29,224
At 30 June 2022 235,282 402,318 637,600
Financial
reinsurance Lease
arrangement liabilities Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Note 36) {Note 35)
At 1 January 2020 368,839 531,751 900,590
Changes from financing cash
flows:
Repayment of financing under a
financial reinsurance arrangement (102,744) - (102,744)
Capital element of lease rentals paid - (162,736) (162,736)
Interest element of lease rentals paid - (28,710) (28,710)
Total changes from financing cash
flows (102,744) {191,446) (294,190)
Other changes:
Interest expenses (note 11) 17,388 28,710 46,098
Increase in lease liabilities from new
leased properties - 131,036 131,036
Total other changes 17,388 159,746 177,134
At 30 June 2021 283,483 500,051 783,534

During the year ended 30 June 2022 and for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021,
there were no changes from financing cash flows arising from the notes issued by a
subsidiary of the Company (see note 36(i)). Payments of interest expenses of the notes
are classified as operating activities as shown in the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Cash and cash equivalents (Continued)
Total cash outflow for leases

Amounts included in the cash flow statement for leases comprise the following:

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Within operating cash flows 119,983 187,751
Within financing cash flows (118,701) (191,446)
1,282 (3,695)

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies
Regulatory framework

The operations of the Group are subject to local regulatory requirements in Hong Kong.
The Bermuda Monetary Authority continues to give the Group concession to submit these
consolidated financial statements in satisfaction of the Bermuda Monetary Authority’s filing
requirements. The Group is required to maintain an appropriate solvency position {0 meet
unforeseen liabilities arising from economic shocks and/or natural disasters.

Capital management framework

The Group has an internal risk management framework for identifying risks to which each
of its business units and the Group as a whole are exposed. The internal framework
estimates indicate how much capital is needed to mitigate the risk of insolvency to a
selected remote level of risk applied to a number of tesis on the capital position of the
business.

The Company always maintains a solvency position higher than 150% of the solvency
margin required by the Insurance Authority (“IA”) to ensure an adequate surplus position.
Further objectives are set by the Group to maintain a strong credit rating and healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business.

The Group manages its capital requirements by assessing probable shortfalls between
reported and required capital levels on a regular basis. Adjustments to current capitai
levels are made in light of changes in economic conditions and risk characteristics of the
Group’s activities.

The Group fully complied with capital requirements imposed by the A during the reported

financial pericds and no changes were made io its capital base, objectives, policies and
processes from the previous year.
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Asset liability management (“ALM”) framework

Financial risks arise from open positions in interest rate, currency and equity products, all
of which are exposed to general and specific market movements. The main risks that the
Group faces due to the nature of its investments and liabilities are interest rate risk and
duration risk. The Group manages these positions within an ALM framework that has been
developed to achieve long term investment returns in excess of its obligations under
insurance and investment contracts. The principal technique of the Group's ALM is to
match assets to the liabilities arising from insurance and investment contracts by reference
to the type of benefits payable fo contract holders.

The Group’s ALM also forms an integral part of the insurance risk management related
policies, to ensure in each period sufficient cash flows are available to meet liabilities
arising from insurance and investment contracts.

Insurance risk

The Group is in the business of insuring against the risk of mortality, morbidity, disability,
critical illness, accidents and related risks. The Group retains a maximum of US$150,000
for each risk it insures, with the excess being reinsured through surplus treaties,
coinsurance treaties, facultative reinsurance, catastrophe treaties and quota share
arrangements with reputable international reinsurers. Consequently, total claims payable
in any given year can be predicted with a higher degree of precision. As part of the Group’s
quality control process, the Group regularly invites reinsurers to review its underwriting
and claim practices and procedures, to ensure that the Group meet the highest industry
standards.

The Group offefs some products with explicit investment guarantees. One product is
Invest- a-surance, an unbundled product with separate insurance and invesiment benefits
and offers a minimum interest credit of 4% per annum. Invesi-a-surance is a closed block.

Super Saver is a single- pay five-year endowment plan denominated in US dollar, with
guaranteed return of 3.5% per annum at maturity. Elite Choice is a universal life product
launched in 2012 and offers a soft- guarantee every 5 year period. The current guaranteed
return is 1.0%/0.5%/3.0%/2.0% per annum for USD/HKD/AUD/CNY respectively. Wealth
Achiever/Gorgeous Universal Life Protection Plan are universal life plans launched in 2016
and 2019 respectively and offer lock-in crediting rates for the first 2 policy years up to 4.8%.
Wealth Achiever offers point-to- point guarantees at 2% per annum for the first 10 policy
years whilst Gorgeous Universal Life Protection Plan offers hard guarantees at 2% per
annum. The investment funds as at 30 June 2022 for Invest-a-surance amounted to HK
$61,951,428 (2021: HK$61,829,612). The investment fund for Elite Choice amounted to
HK$13,716,945 (2021: HK$13,026,470). The investment fund for Wealth Achiever
amounted to HK$653,523,555 (2021: HK$650,720,700). The investment fund for
Gorgeous Universal Life Protection Plan amounted to $104,983,435 (2021: HK
$92,402,076). The reserve for Super Saver amounted to HKSNil because all Super Saver
policies have already matured by November 2021 (2021: HK$389,299,399). The reserve
held for the investment guarantee amounted to HK$1,762,961 (2021: HK $3,657,227) for
Invest-a-surance. The reserve held for the Elite Choice guarantee return amounted to
HK$102,537 (2021: HK$97,731).
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

Group and Company
At 30 June 2022 At 30 June 2021
Reinsurers’ Reinsurers'
Gross share of Net Gross share of Net
liabllities ligbilities liabilities liabilities liabilities liabilities
HK$000 HK$'C00 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Type of products
Whole life 39,254,245 {1,279) 39,252,966 34,310,082 {1,213) 34,309,769
Term 95,878 (273) 95,605 94,988 {284) 94,704
Dread disease 2,130,913 {58) 2,130,855 1,904,332 (77 1,804,255
Medical 266,422 - 266,422 241,310 - 241,310
Disability 10,081 (35) 10,046 10,684 {33) 10,651
Accident 25,259 (40) 25,219 23,854 {42) 23,912
At 30 June 41,782,798 (1,685) 41,781,113 36,586,250 (1,648) 36,584,601
Coinsurance liabilities 231,473 - 231,473 224,343 - 224,343
Insurance contract
liabilities related to non-
unit-linked contracts
(note 37) 42,014,271 (1,685) 42,012,586 36,810,593 (1.649) 36,808,844

Key assumptions

Liabilities on insurance contracts offered by the Group are predominantly conventional
whole life insurance for which premiums are paid for a limited period of time or the whole
of life, with fixed benefits paid upon death and surrender benefits increasing with the
duration of policy.

Some plans provide for guaranteed periodic payments. Most of the whole life insurance
products are entitled to annual dividends and some with terminal dividend upon policy
termination. For this block of policies and also for endowment and level term products, the
assumptions used for the determination of future liabilities for most products are:

For the year ended For the eighteen months ended 30
30 June 2022 June 2021
Mortality For products with full underwriting, | For products with full underwriting,
rate 59% 2001 Hong Kong Assured 62% 2001 Hong Kong Assured

Life Mortality tables for males and | Life Mortality tables for males and
females, with selection factor 50% : females, with selection factor 50%

at year 1 and 75% at year 2, at year 1 and 75% at year 2.

For products without full For products without full
underwriting, 59% 2001 Hong underwriting, 62% 2001 Hong
Kong Assured Life Mortality tables | Kong Assured Life Mortality tables
for males and females. for males and females.
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies {Continued)

Insurance risk (Continued)

Key assumptions {Continued)

For the year ended
30 June 2022

For the eighteen months ended 30
June 2021

Interest
rate

2.10% for Regent Insurance Plan,
Regent Prestige Insurance Plan,
Regent Premier Insurance Plan,
Joyful Life Insurance Plan, and
Regent Insurance Plan 2, Regent
Insurance Plan 3 (Prestige
Version), Regent Prime/ Elite
Insurance Plan, Regent Prime
/Elite Insurance Plan [, and
RewardPro Insurance Plan

3.35% for HealthCare 100 Critical
lliness Protector, Regal Premier
Saver, @MyLove Insurance Plan |,
@MyLove Insurance Plan Il,
Health@Ease Critical lliness
Protector, and MediSave Medical
Account

2.60% for HealthCare 168 Critical
lliness Protector, HealthCare 168
Critical lliness Protecior 2,
HealthCare 168 Plus Critical lliness
Protector

2.60% On Your Mind Insurance
Plan,

2.80% for Glorious Protection
Insurance Plan

2.80% for IncomePro Annuity Plan
(Regular Premium}

2.80% for IncomePro Annuity Plan
(Single Premium)

2.80% for Prosperous Deferred
Annuity Plan

2.80% for Prosperous Deferred
Annuity Plan 2

2.60% for Fortune Saver
2.60% for Fortune Saver I
2.60% for Fortune Saver Il

2.00% for Regent Insurance Plan,
Regent Prestige Insurance Plan,
Regent Premier [nsurance Plan,
Joyful Life Insurance Plan, and
Regent Insurance Plan 2, Regent
Prime/Elite Insurance Plan,
Regent Prime/Elite Insurance
Plan li, and RewardPro Insurance
Plan

3.25% for HealthCare 100 Critical
lliness Protector, Regal Premier
Saver, @MyLove Insurance Plan
I, @MyLove Insurance Plan Il
Health@Ease Critical lliness
Protector, and MediSave Medical
Account

2.50% for HealthCare 168 Critical
lliness Protector HealthCare 168
Critical lllness Protector 2,
HealthCare 168 Plus Critical
lliness Protector

3.44% On Your Mind Insurance
Plan

3.20% for Glorious Protection
Insurance Plan

3.55% for IncomePro Annuity Plan
(Regular Premium)

4.10% for IncomePro Annuity Plan
(Single Premium)

3.70% for Prosperous Deferred
Annuity Plan

3.83% for Prosperous Deferred
Annuity Plan 2

3.31 % for Fortune Saver
3.57 % for Fortune Saver |

3.75% for most other policies
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Insurance risk (Continued)

Key assumptions (Continued}

For the year ended For the eighteen months ended 30
30 June 2022 June 2021

Interest rate | 4.25% for ESG Combo

3.80% for most other policies

Lapse rate | Based on Group’s experience Based on Group's experience

Expense Based on Group’s experience Based on Group's experience

The method of calculating the liabilities is the net level premium reserve, with an
adjustment to remove premium deficiency.

For unit-linked funds, the liabilities are the fund account values.

For insurance with pure risk coverage such as accident benefit, dread disease, medical
insurance and disability insurance, the liabilities are the unearned gross premiums.

Most of the policyholders of the insurance contracts issued by the Group are residents of
Hong Kong.

The Group's investment returns on the investment assets backing the insurance fund,
including realised and unrealised gains and losses are:

For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021 10.26%
For the year ended 30 June 2022 -15.40%

The Group’s actual claims compared to the mortality experience assumed in the
calculation of the future insurance contract liabilities are:

For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021 86%
For the year ended 30 June 2022 83%
Sensitivities

For the year ended 30 June 2022

(Decrease)/

increase in {Decrease)/

Assumption profit increase

change before tax in equity

HK$'000 HK$'000
Mortality +10% (233,910) (233,910)
Discount rate -50 basis points (2,279,532) (2,279,532)
Expense +10% (64,473) (64,473)

Lapse rate +20% 152,845 152,845
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies {(Continued)
Insurance risk (Continued)

Sensitivities (Continued)

For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021

(Decrease)/
increase in (Decrease)/
Assumption profit increase
change before tax in equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
Mortality +10% (226,922) (226,922)
Discount rate -50 basis points (2,445,418) (2,445,418)
Expense +10% (56,025) (56,025)
Lapse rate +20% 137,512 137,512

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due.
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from policy loans, loans to agent, debt securities,
derivative financial instruments, deposits and other debtors and cash and cash
equivalents.

The Group considers the probability of default from initial recognition of assets and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis by close monitoring
against established credit policies in each of its business. To assess whether there is a
significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets, generally on individual basis, as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forward-
looking information. The following indicators are generally incorporated:

. external credit rating (if any);
. average default rate by independent external parties;
. actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic

conditions that are expected to cause a significant change to the counterparties’
ability to meet their obligations; and

. significant actual and expected changes in the performance and behaviour of the
counterparties, including changes in the payment status of counterparties in the
Group and changes in the operating results of the counterparties.

A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments
when they fall due. Financial assets are considered to be credit-impaired and written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.

The Group limits the exposures in various asset types to pre-defined strategic asset
allocation ranges. The Group also sets targets on currency, maturity and credit limit on its
fixed income portfolios. The Group mainly deals with institutions with high
creditworthiness.
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of default occurring on the financial
instrument assessed at the reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recagnition. In making this reassessment, the Group considers that a default event occurs
when the financial instrument has payment default in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the agreement. There is a rebuttable presumption that default does not occur
later than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportabte information
to support a more lagging default criterion. The Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical experience
and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit
risk has increased significanily since initial recognition:

- significant market vaiue drop (i.e. more than 15% drop for non-investment grade
financial assets) due to widening of credit spread; and

- non-investment grade financial assets with credit rating downgraded by 4 notches
or more.

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk is performed on either an individual basis or a collective basis. When
the assessment is performed on a collective basis, the financial instruments are grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due status and credit risk rafings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect changes in the financial instrument’s
credit risk since initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is recognised as an
impairment gain or loss in profit or loss. The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss
for all financial insiruments with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount
through a loss allowance account, except for investments in debt securities that are
measured at FVOC! (recycling), for which the loss allowance is recognised in the other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the FVOCI reserve (recycling).

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with note 2.4(ai) is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit-impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired. A

financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a defrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the foliowing observable events:

- significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default on contractual payments or delinquency in
interest or principal paymenis, unless a compensation plan is proposed and

accepted by the Group;

- it becomes probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties
of the issuer;

- Second best credit rating falls to Ca or below.
Incorporation of forward looking adjustment ("FLA")

As an adjustment factor, FLA considers the probability of bear case economy, base case
economy and bull case economy based on simulation result based on the latest economic
scenario. When estimating such a probability, an empirical study of historical economy
growth based on assumed normal distribution is performed. The Group considers and
applies the impact of FLA to the ECL measurement.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Group determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously written off are recognised as a
reversal of impairment in profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Write-off policy (Continued)

The table below shows the market value for the componenis of certain financial
instruments and insurance assets of the consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group that are subject to credit risk exposure:

At 30 June 2022

Policy loans

Loans to agents

Debt securities

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents (Note)

Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to investments related to
unit-linked contracts

At 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021

Policy loans

Loans o agenis

Debt securities ‘

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents (Note)

Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to investments related to
unit-linked contracts

At 30 June 2021

49,691,323

General and
shareholders’
fund Unit-linked Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
543,428 - 543,428
99,645 - 99,645
39,572,424 - 39,572,424
64,475 - 64,475
370,953 42,963 413,916
5,590,990 147 5,501,137
- 27,284 27,284
46,241,915 70,394 46,312,309
General and
sharehoiders’
fund Unit-linked Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
506,350 - 506,350
65,630 - 65,630
42,257,517 - 42,257,517
1,452,920 - 1,452,920
939,519 35,278 974,797
4,469,387 27,845 4,497,232
- 53,068 53,068
116,191 49 807,514

Note: Cash and cash equivalents of unit-linked business represents cash-in-transit from

trades of unit-linked business.
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Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued}
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit exposure by credit rating

The table below provides information regarding the credit risk exposure of the Group by

classifying certain financial assets according to the credit ratings of instruments or
counterparties where applicable.

At 30 June 2022
Non-
Investment investment
grade grade Unit-linked Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Policy loans - 543,428 - 543,428
Loans to agents - 99,645 - 99,645
Debt securities 38,999,704 572,720 - 39,572,424
Derivative financial instruments 64,475 - - 64,475
Deposits and other debtors 10,389 360,564 42,963 413,916
Cash and cash equivalents 5,590,890 - 147 5,591,137
Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to investments
related to unit-linked contracts - - 27,284 27,284
At 30 June 2022 44,665,558 1,576,357 70,394 46,312,309
At 30 June 2021
Non-
Investment investment
Grade grade Unit-linked Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Policy loans - 506,350 - 506,350
Loans to agents - 65,630 - 65,630
Debt securities 41,074,950 1,182,567 - 42,257,517
Derivative financial instruments 651,151 801,769 - 1,452,920
Deposits and other debtors 13,658 925,861 35,278 974,797
Cash and cash equivalents 4,469,387 - 27,845 4,497,232
Cash and cash equivalents
attributable to investments
related to unit-linked contracts - - 53,068 53,068
At 30 June 2021 46,209,146 3,482,177 116,191 49,807,514
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Credit exposure by credit rating (Continued)

Aaa and AAA are the highest credit ratings in the Moody's and Standard and Poor’s credit
rating systems, respectively. The Group classifies its debt securities which are below Baa3
and BBB- in the Moody's and Standard and Poor's credit rating systems respectively as

non- investment grade debt securities.

As at 30 June 2022, the amount of the non-investment grade debt securities held by the
Group was approximately 1% of its invested assets (At 30 June 2021: 2%).

Credit losses and impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) on the following
items:

- financial assets measured at amortised cost {including cash and cash equivalents,
deposits and other debtors, policy loans and loans to agents); and

- debt securities measured at FVOCL.

Financial assets measured at FVPL, including equities, interests in investment funds and
derivative financial assets, and equity securities designated at FVOCI (non-recycling), are
not subject to the ECL assessment.

Measurement of ECL.s

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows
due to the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the following discount rates where the
effect of discounting is material:

- fixed-rate financial assets: effective interest rate determined at initial recognition or
an approximation thereof;

- variable-rate financial assets: current effective interest rate.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued}

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account reasonable and supportable information
that is available without undue cost or effort. This includes information about past events,
current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

- 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from possible default
events within the 12 months after the reporting date; and

- lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to result from all possible default
events over the expected lives of the items to which the ECL model applies.

The Group recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk of the financial instrument since initial recognition, in which
case the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Classification of financial assets by Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3

Stage 1 (12-month ECL): For financial instruments without a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date, ECLs resulting
from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date are
recognised. For the avoidance of doubt, the Group classified all financial instruments rated
as investment grade are classified as Stage 1 assets.

Stage 2 (Lifetime ECL not credit-impaired): For financial instruments with a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and is not considered as low risk, lifetime
ECLs are recognised. The Group considered non-investment grade financial assets with
credit rating downgraded by 4 notches or more as a significant increase in credit risk.
Besides, the Group adopted qualitative evaluation on the credit quality of assets to identify
other assets with significant increase in credit risk.

Stage 3 (Lifetime ECL credit-impaired): For financial instruments that its credit risks has
increased to the level where the Group will consider credit-impaired. The Group
considered financial assets which have breach of financial covenants, default on
contractual payments or credit rating downgraded to default rating as credit-impaired.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Reconciliation from opening to closing balance of loss allowance by class of instruments

The following table shows the movement of expected credit losses that have been
recognised for the respective financial assets:

As at 30 June 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Loan to agents

Balance as at 1 July 2021 - 1,970 54,704 56,674
Increase in loss allowance
recognised in current year - 19,704 6,856 26,560

Release of loss allowance
for loans derecognised

upon settlement - (1,120) (1,875) (2,995)
Balance as at 30 June 2022 - 20,554 59,685 80,239
As at 30 June 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bonds
Balance as at 1 July 2021 42,298 26,300 - 68,598
Increase in loss allowance
recognised in current year 1,996 9,430 149,913 161,339
Transfers 21,677 (23,998) 2,321 -

Release of loss allowance
for bonds derecognised

upon settlement (3,589) - - (3,589)
Exchange realignment 498 133 796 1,427
Balance as at 30 June 2022 62,880 11,865 163,030 227,775

For credit risk in respect of bonds, the maturity profile is included in note 21 in the
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies {Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

Reconciliation from opening to closing balance of loss allowance by class of instruments
(Continued)

The following table shows the movement of expected credit losses that have been
recognised for the respective financial assets: {Continued)

As at 30 June 2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Loan to agents
Balance as at 1 January

2020 - 9,221 55,576 64,797
Increase in loss allowance
recognised in current year - (490) 24,207 23,717

Release of loss allowance

for loans derecognised

upon settlement - (6,761) {19,605) (26,366)
Written off in current year - - (b,474) (5,474)

Balance as at 30 June 2021 - 1,970 54,704 56,674

As at 30 June 2021

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Lifetime
ECL not Lifetime
12-month credit- ECL credit-
ECL impaired impaired Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Bonds
Balance as at 1 January
2020 15,187 - - 15,187
Increase in loss allowance
recognised in current year 33,735 26,067 - 59,802
Transfers (202) 202 - -

Release of loss allowance
for bonds derecognised

upon settlement (6,466) - - (6,466)
Exchange realignment 44 31 - 75

Balance as at 30 June 2021 42 298 26,300 - 68,598

For credit risk in respect of bonds, the maturity profile is included in note 21 in the
consolidated financial statements.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Ligquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in raising funds {o meet cash
commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity risk may result from either
the inability to sell financial assets quickly at their fair values; or counterparty failing to
repay contractual obligations; or insurance liability falling due for payment earlier than
expected; or inability to generate cash inflows as anticipated.

The major liquidity risks the Group confronts are the daily calls on its available cash
resources in respect of claims arising from insurance and investment contracts and the
maturity of debt securities.

The Group manages liquidity through its liquidity risk policy which inciudes determining
what constitutes liquidity risk for the Group and the minimum proportion of funds to meet
emergency calls; the setting up of contingency funding plans; specifying the sources of
funding and the events that would trigger the plan; the reporting of liquidity risk exposures
and breaches to the monitoring authority; monitoring the compliance with liquidity risk
policy and the reviewing of the Group's liquidity risk policy for pertinence and changing
environment.

- 87 -



Iwwl

LL¥'IG6'EL  €Z.'6.0FL  PS9°GEB'S g/c'oy 060°cS 069'cs 62781 yor'06l €59'619'v
¥86'260'1 LSPPLLL GL8'GL AR AP A £65°€S £65'eS 209°LLL 6¥S0L1 £68'6¢.
Zvs'9sl'L rA A T 199°L6 - - - - - G/8'v89'lL
v10'L¥e'e L1V'1eET - - - - 866'Go 9v0'08 £EY'LBL'Z
S0L'EL §.0'€2 - 906'8l {205) 16 611 (Le1} esv'e
950's51'8 950°6518 960'GSL'e - - - - - -
911'e/9 all'es9 glLlL'el9 - - - - - -
000.$%H 000,$4H 000.$3H 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.5MH 000.$H 000.8MH 000.$MH
junowe 1ej0] pPayuUI-IuN SIEaA G < SIEDA sieak ¢ sieak Jeald 859
BuiAued ¥<INQ <inq Z<1ing L<ng Jo Jeak |
559| 889 SS9 SS9
10 siesh g 10 sieah ¢ losieak ¢ Josiesh g

ZZ0Z aunf OF Papua 1034 241 J0f SJUIWSD]S [DIUDLUIS
paywny Auodwo? aauninsu; 3ff 4

SMOJUSED Palunoosipun [enjoeiuos)

slolpaio Jayjo pue
S9SUSAXD panIoaY
siap|oyfaljod
0} sa|qelied
saljlqei|
Bulieag-1salo|
SUEINGNET
[eIOUBLY SAJBALIS(]
A o]
paxul-iun
0} pale[d sanqe!]
10BJUOD JUSWI]SIAL|
S19BJU0D
payul-pun
0} psie|al salliqed|
10BJIUOD SoUBINSU|

¢coc sunp og v

"SMOJ} USED pPSaiunoosipun [BNOBNUoD J1ay} Uo paseq
sdnolf Ajunew JueAajel Jisyy ol ajep Buidodal ay) 1e dnoig) sy) Jo saljIgel| payul-liun pue saljjigel [BIouBul B sasAjeue mojaq ajqe} eyl

(penunuog) ysu Aypinbi

(panunuon) saivijod pue saAloslqo Juswabeurw YSU [RIDUBULY pUE 93UBINSU|

S1INIW3LVLS TVIONVNId 3HL OL S31ON

Q31N ANVJdINOD FONVINSNI 34114

(0
fy
6Z



Imwl

182'%9¥' Ll  ¥.2'T69°ZL  908'8L0'LL G008 86E'ES 202°9L1 91081 682'Sl2'2 0lv'996'c
120°0S6°L €12'966°L gzL'ee G00'L8 £6G'ES 258811 681901 279'vLL clT'e8r’l
L6LOLLL L6L'0LL'L 12e‘ey - - - - - 91°899°1L
GZ.'658°C 71S0v0'E - - - 8.G'.S $90'cL 08.°001°2 260°608
964 zog'l - - {g61) zie e zee 285
99/'gcL'0L  99.°9¢L'0lL  99r'¢el0L - - - - - -
885908 885908 885°008 - - - - - -
000.$¥H 000.$MH 000.$H1H 000.$MH 000.$3H 000.$H 000.$HH 000.$MH 000.$H
nnowe 2101 payuILn SIBAA G < sieak siedh ¢ sleal leak s59}
Buikiied <N <Ing Z<inq < nq JoJeah |
$89| $59| s59) SS9
10 sleak g 10 SIEdh ¥ JosiesA ¢ 0sedh g

Z20Z 3unf OE papua J0a4 3y} Jof SJUIWAINGS [D1UDUIS
payut Aupdwo) asupinsuf 3fiTid

SMO[JYSED Pajunooasipun [Bnioenuc))

S10)IpaIo JSYlo pue
sasuadxe paniody
slapjoyAalod
0} sajgeied
safligey|
Bulesqg-1saia)uy|
SN
[elouBUY BAlBALID]
S)0BUOD
payul-un
O} pejelad saniigel|
10B1JUOD JUSLISAAL|
S)oBNUOD
paXull-iun
0] pejejal ssijigel|
10B3U030 aaueInsuU|

Leog aunf ge v

(panunuoD) SMOJL YSED PajUNOOSIPUn [EMOBRUOD JI8Y) UC paseq
sdnoiB Aunjew Jueasal J1sy) ojul aep Buuodal sy) 18 dnols ay) Jo Senijige]] payUIFIuN pue sailjiqel [eloueul ||e sesA[eue mo|aq S)qe) oyl

{(panunuog) ysu Aypinbi

(panunuo)) saioijod pue saanoalqo yuswabeuew y¥si [eloueUl pue adueINSU]

SINIWILVILS TVIONVNId JHL OL S31ON

A31INIM ANVdINOD FONVINSNI 341114

ity
f))
6z



Ioml

869°100'0F ZL0'2LS'LF  S60'909 ZS5'e05 (£69'502) (920'8c2) 208'c9Z'V
GgZ's §6Z'S - - - - -
zlL'z8B'e - - - - - 2/1'286'c
LLZ'PLOCY  2G2°99G6°Ly  S60°909 255°€09 {£69'502) (020'8€2) 9£0°18¢2
000,$MH 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.$MH
[0l sieahA g < slead sieah ¢ sieak leak s59]

p<ing <ing r L < ing 1o Jeah |

§59| 59| s59| 559)

Jo sleah g Jo slead ¢ Josiead ¢ Jo slead z

ZZ0Z 3Unr OF P2PU3 10234 3U1 JOf STUBWB)NIS [DIIUDULS

payuyt Aundwio) aiupinsu) afi1L4

SJOBNUOD payjul|
-NuN-uoU 0] pajefa. SenilIgel] JOBHUOD JUSLUISSAU|
$9SNUOG pPUB PUBPIAIP S1ap|oyAaliod
$)0RUO0D paYU|
-un-uou 0} pajelal saylIgel] J9BlJuUcD ssueInsSy|

¢coc sunr og v

"senljiqel asay) anes o uoisod yseo Jo [2A9| sjeudoidde ue Buipes pue
Buuoyuow Ag ysu siy) sebeuew dnoigy ay| '}1S00 S|BUOSESI B B aNnp uaym ssllljigel] 9))18s 0} a|ge(IeA. 8 JOU [[IM YSED 1eY) S B 210jaJa)}
SI 8Iay ] "en|eA Japuauns Jo} saioljod JO Jepuslns Ajes pue SIOBIUOI paXUll-}Jun-uocu 0] paje|al SJoRJIUOD JUSLUISSAL| puB adueInsu] s) uo
Suisue swiejo wol) A|gelol 'saalnosal Ysed )1 Uo sjeo Allep 1eaw 0] sey dnois) sy] "S}oeljuod Dayull-jiun-uou o) paje|al S}oBAuUOD JUSLIISSAU]
pue @oueINsul Japun sanijqe!| wol; Buisie smopl Yseo o Buiwi pue (sIseq pajunossip B Uo) sjunowe pajewnse ay) sjuesald molaq a|ge} sy L

(ponunuog) ysu Aypinbr

(panunuon) saidijod pue saanaalqo juswabieuew Ysu [eloueUl pue 3dueINSU|

SINIW3LVIS TVIONVNI4 3H1 OL S310N

A31INIT ANYdINOD JIONVHNSNI 341114

()
)
62



IF@I

€22°0/%'0F  19G6'2GZ'8E  BEG'VPE {s15's€1) (815'269) (692°'162°L)  G50'V66'S
grL's 8yL'g - - - - -
zZeo'Le9'e - - - - - ZE0'L99'E
£65°018'0¢  €1+'262'8¢  BES'PYE (g26'sel) (815'269) (682'162°L)  £20°CEE
000.$MH 000.$MH 000,$3H 000.$MH 000.$MH 000.$XH 000.$MH
B0l SIEaA g < S1eoA sieoA ¢ sieal lealk $59]

< INq < 1ngq Z<1ng < Ing JO Jeah |

SS9 S59] $59] $59|

10 slesl g losieal ¢ losleaA ¢ losiesA g

ZZ0Z 3unf OE Papua 1034 ay3 Jof SUALUINIS (DISUDUIS

pajuyt Aupdwo) asupinsuf o114

S)0BJILI0D payul|
<IUR-UoU 0} PaJE|aJ SAIIGE]} JOBJJUOD JUSWISSAU|
$85NUOq pUe PUSpIAIp SJep[oyAdlioed
S]0B.4U0D Pasjul|
-Jlun-uou o} pajeja. ssiIjIgel| YEAUCD SoUBINSY|

Leoc aunr oe v

(penuiluoo) "saniigel] 9sayl s[as 0} uonisod ysea Jo |9As| ejeudoldde ue Bumes pue
Buuoyuow Aqg ysu siy) sebeuew dnoigy ay| '1S00 S|QBUOSESI B 8 anp usuym sa)ll|idel] 9[)1es 0} |qe[IeAR 8 JOU ||Im YSED Jey) 3si e ai10jelau)
St 2I8Y] "SN[BA J9PUBLINS 10} $810i|0d 1O Jopuslins AlJEa pue SOBAUOI Padul-Jun-ucu o) paje|al SjoBJuUcD JUSLUISSAUL pue adueinsul s}l uo
Buisue swieo woJl Ajgelou ‘saslnosal Yseo s)i Uo sjjed Ajlep 198w 0] Sey dnolg) oy "SIoeljuod payuli-jiun-uou o} palefal SjoBJuoD JUSW]SIAUI
pue 9oUBINSul Japun saijigel| woJ Buisue smoj) yseo jo Buil pue (siseq palunoosip B U0) sjunowe pajewjse ay) sjuassald moljeq sjqel sy |

{(panuguo)) ysu Appinbi

(ponunuo9n) sardljod pue saARdafgo Jusawabeuew ysiI [elouBUY) pue ddURINSU]

SINIWILVLS TVIONVNI4 3HL OL S31ON

Q3LINIM ANVAINOD JONVYUNSNI 341114

(n
@
62



29
(9)

FTlife insurance Company Limited
Financiol statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in fair value of financial instruments from fluctuation in
foreign exchange rates (currency risk), market interest rates (interest rate risk} and market
prices (price risk), whether such changes in price are caused by factors specific to
individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the
market. These risks are discussed in the following sections:

Currency risk

It is the Group's policy to maich its assets and liabilities by currency to minimise its
exposure to currency risk. The Group sells policies mostly denominated in Hong Kong
doliars and United States dollars and its assets are appropriately invested to meet these
liabilities. The Hong Kong dollar is pegged to the United States dollar. Management
believes that this peg will continue in the near future. Nevertheless, management will
monitor the situation closely and take appropriate actions when necessary. As at 30 June
2022, the Group had 0.09% of its investments and cash and cash equivalents
denominated in foreign currencies, other than the United States dollar (30 June 2021:
0.13%). The Group believes that the currency risk in equities is reflected in their share
price and therefore its exposure to the foreign currencies has not been hedged.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of financial
instruments which will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Group's Asset and Liability Management policy requires it to manage the interest rate
risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and variable rate instruments. The policy
also requires it to manage the maturities of interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities.

The following table shows the sensitivity of financial instruments of bonds and forward
starting swap which has the greatest exposure to the Group’s interest rate risk.

(Decrease)/
increase in
(Decrease)/ other (Decrease)/
increase comprehensive increase in
Change in interest rate in net assets income equity
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
30 June 2022
+50 basis points (2,498,984) (2,498,984) (2,498,984)
-50 basis points 2,498,984 2,498,984 2,498,984
30 June 2021
+50 basis points (3,130,950) (3,130,950) (3,130,950)
-50 basis points 3,130,950 3,130,950 3,130,950
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FTLife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

Price risk

The Group'’s price risk exposure relates to financial assets and liabilities which values will
fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices of individual instruments and of any
underlying investment portfolio, principally in refation to investment securities not held for
the account of unit-linked business.

Such investment securities are subject to price risk due to changes in market values of
instruments and any underlying investment portfolio arising either from factors specific to
individual instruments or their issuers or factors affecting all instruments traded in the
market.

The Group's Investment Management policy requires it to manage such risk by setting and
monitoring objectives and constraints on investments and diversification plans, and to limit
the investment in each couniry, sector and market.

Increase/
(decrease) in increase/
Change in profit  (decrease)in
variables before tax equity
HK$'000 HK$'000
30 June 2022
Market indices (Note (a)) +10% 711,543 813,639
Market indices (Note (a)) -10% (711,543) (813,639)
30 June 2021
Market indices (Note (a)) +10% 767,176 926,721
Market indices (Note (a)) -10% (767,176) (926,721)
Note (a): Assume the movement of underlying investment portfolios that resuit from

the changes in market prices are in line with the market indices movement.

The above table does not incorporate the overlay approach adjustments.
The impact of overlay approach adjustments on profit or loss would be
increased/(decreased) approximately of HK$748,992,000 by changing in
10% (for the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: HK$728,263,000).
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Finoncial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Insurance and financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Designation of equities at FVOCI (non-recycling)

As at 30 June 2022, the Group designated the following list of equities at FVOCI (non-
recycling):

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

(1) a listed Hong Kong based investment holding

company principally engaged in investment in

listed and unlisted enterprises - 220,400
(2) a listed Chinese bank headquartered in

Zhejiang, the People's Republic of China

("PRC") 969,854 1,187,911
(3} a listed Chinese provincial city commercial

bank headquartered in Nanchang, Jiangxi

Province, the PRC 51,111 187,138

1,020,965 1,595,449

The designated list of equities indicated the strategic relationship (“strategic assets”) of the
Group. To fulfil the definition as strategic assets, two of the following conditions must be
met:

- the Group and/or its affiliated companies has existing or the intention to enter into
strategic cooperation with these companies;

- the primary investment objective is for earning dividend income; and/or
- the Group has an intention to hold such investments for not less than 6 months.

As at 30 June 2022, the fair value of the strategic assets amounted to HK$1,020,965,000
(As at 30 June 2021: HK$1,595,449,000). Dividend income from the strategic assets
amounted to HK$51,326,000 (For the eighteen monihs ended 30 June 2021:
HK$86,124,000) during the year, of which HK$NIL (For the eighteen months ended 30
June 2021: HK$9,673,000) was earned from investments derecognised during the year
and the remaining HK$51,326,000 (For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021:
HK$76,451,000) was earned from the investments held as at the reporting date.

Disposal gain of strategic assets amounted to HK$110,020,000 (For the eighteen months
ended 30 June 2021: Disposal loss HK$29,035,000) during the year. Strategic assets 1 to
3 listed above were partially disposed for stop-loss and rebalancing/de-risk purposes.

The fair value of these disposed strategic assets during the year was HK$1,221,609,000
(For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: HK$163,511,000).
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Derivative financial instruments

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets
Cross currency swap agreements, at fair value 791 16,296
Forward starting swap agreements, at fair value 63,684 634,855
64,475 651,151
Put option, at fair value - 801,769
64,475 1,452,920
Liabilities
Cross currency swap agreements, at fair value (13,705) (796)

Cross currency swap agreements - cash flow hedges for bond investments

From November 2009 onwards, the Group entered into certain cross currency swap
agreements designated as cash flow hedges against its foreign currency risk in respect of
cash flows from certain bond investments of US$116 million (As at 30 June 2021: US$151
million) with maturities ranging from 2019 to 2025. These cross currency swap agreements
are entered with several counterparties over the counter. The Group seeks to hedge the
foreign currency risk by the exchange of payments denominated in targeted currency, and
applies a hedge ratio of 1:1. The existence of an economic relationship between the cross
currency swap agreements and the highly probable forecast transactions is determined
based on their currency amounts and the timing of their respective cash flows. The terms
of the cross currency swap agreements have been negotiated to match the terms of the
underlying bond investments. The cash flow hedges were assessed to be highly effective
and the hedging reserve amounted to -HK$2,149,000 as at 30 June 2022 (As at 30 June
2021: HK$16,197,000).

Forward starting swap agreements - cash flow hedges for bonds to be purchased
in the future

From 2013 onwards, the Group entered into certain forward starting swap agreements
designated as cash flow hedges against its interest rate risk in respect of bonds o be
purchased in the future. Under the agreements, the Group will be entitled to receive fixed
rate of around 4% to 5% per annum, and required to pay floating rate of 3-month LIBOR,
in USD published by the British Banker’s Association. As at 30 June 2022, the total notional
amount was US$100 million (As at 30 June 2021: US$295 million). The cash flow hedge
was assessed to be highly effective and the hedging reserve amounted to HK$63,684,000
as at 30 June 2022 (As at 30 June 2021: HK$634,855,000).
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Forward starting swap agreements - cash flow hedges for bonds to be purchased
in the future (Continued)

The agreements were used to hedge the interest rate risk by the exchange of payments
benchmarked against the targeted fixed interest rate. The Group applies an approximate
hedge ratio of 1:1 and determines the existence of an economic relationship between the
forward starting swap agreements and the debt security investments by matching their
critical terms, including the reference interest rates and interest payments.

As at 30 June 2022, the Group received HK$46,737,000 cash and bank balance from
counterparties as collateral which are repayable on demand (As at 30 June 2021:
HK$640,836,000). Interest is calculated on overnight federal fund rate and payable to
counterparties.

Details for the hedging reserve being recognised in other comprehensive income are as
follows:

Group and Company

For the
For the gighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net movement in hedging reserve recognised in other
comprehensive income (1,092,431) 156,089

The derivative financial instruments are subject to an enforceable masier netting
arrangement and the gross amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

The following table presents the derivative financial instruments that are subject fo
enforceable master netting arrangements and the gross amount is reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Assets
Derivative financial instruments 64,475 651,152
Accrued interest receivable included in prepayments,
deposits and other debtors 10,347 13,614
74,822 664,766

-06 -



30

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Derivative financial instruments (Continued)

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (13,705) (796)
Accrued interest payable included in accrued
expenses and other creditors (10,195) (13,437)
(23,900) (14,233)

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net amounts
Assets
Derivative financial instruments 60,199 650,356
Accrued interest receivable included in prepayments,
Deposits and other debtors 173 242
60,372 650,598
Liabilities
Derivative financial instruments (9,429) -
Accrued interest payable included in accrued
expenses and other creditors (21) (65)
(9,450) (65)

Put option - hedges for market risks associated with certain equity

As at 30 June 2021, the Company held a put option to dispose of an equity investment
held by the Company, which was designated as financial assets at FVOCI, at a specified
price within a specific transaction period. As at 30 June 2021, the fair value of the put
option amounted to approximately HK$802 million.

On 11 October 2021, the Company entered into a supplemental agreement with the
relevant parties {o amend the settlement terms of the put option. On 30 November 2021,
the transaction was completed and the Company received a cash settlement of
approximately HK$1,119 million. Upon the completion of the fransaction, the equity
investment held by the Company were fransferred and the put option was derecognised.
As a result, total net FVOCI reserve (non-recycling) amounted to approximately HK$146
million was transferred to retained profits in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and Company’s reserve (note 41(b)) during the year ended 30 June 2022.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Payables to policyholders

Claims payable (note 32)
Premium deposits (note 33)
Other payables

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financiol statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
352,263 274,213
1,232,625 1,262,578
191,654 174,000
1,776,542 1,710,791

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of payables to policyholders reasonably

approximate to their fair values at year/period end.

Claims payable

Life and annuity
Linked long term

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
329,666 258,369
22,597 15,844
352,263 274,213

The movements in the provision for claims reported by policyholders and claims incurred

but not reported are analysed as follows:

At 1 July/1 January

Provided during the year/period
Utilised during the year/period
Exchange realignment

At 30 June

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen
year months
ended ended

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$000
274,213 241,287
1,195,859 1,502,913
(1,119,668) (1,469,643)
1,859 (344)
352,263 274,213

Claims incurred but not reported amounted to HK$53,235,000 as at 30 June 2022 (As at
30 June 2021: HK$38,566,000), which are included in claims payable.

The claims payable is expecied io be settled within the next twelve months.
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Premium deposits

Premium deposits are amounts that policyholders left deposits with the Group for the
payment of future premiums and are expected {o be utilised within the next twelve months.

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 1,262,578 1,107,450
Received during the year/period 14,665,203 16,901,156
Utilised during the year/pericd (14,707,462) (16,742,680)
Exchange realignment 12,306 (3,348)
At 30 June 1,232,625 1,262,578

Accrued expenses and other creditors
Group

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Commission payable 245,989 269,429
Reinsurance payable (Note) 87,706 49,107
lease liabilities (note 35) 402,318 500,051
Other payables and accruals 361,971 1,131,484

1,097,984 1,950,071

Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Commission payable 245,989 269,429
Reinsurance payable (Note) 87,706 49,107
Lease liabilities {(note 35) 402,318 500,051
Other payables and accruals 346,972 1,116,454
1,082,985 1,935,041
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Accrued expenses and other creditors (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 lune 2022

The maturity profile of the accrued expenses and other creditors is stated as below:

Group

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Payable within one year 751,390 1,503,563
Payable after one year 346,594 446,508
1,097,984 1,950,071

Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Payable within one year 736,391 1,488,533
Payable after one year 346,594 446,508
1,082,985 1,935,041

The director consider that the carrying amounts of accrued expenses and other creditors
approximate to their fair values at year/period end. Accrued expenses and other creditors
are non-interest bearing.

(i) Reinsurance premium and commission are offset and the net amount is reported
in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends either to
seitle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of recognised financial
instruments that are subject to the above agreements:

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Gross amount presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Assets
Prepayments, deposits and other debtors
- Reinsurance receivable 64,007 67,322
Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other creditors
- Reinsurance payable 151,713 116,429
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

34 Accrued expenses and other creditors (Continued)

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Net amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position
Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other creditors
- Reinsurance payable 87,706 49,107

35 Lease liabilities

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s lease
liabilities at reporting date:

At 30 June 2022 Af 30 June 2021
Present Present
value value
of the lease Total lease of the lease Total lease
payments payments payments payments
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
Within 1 year 100,757 113,866 102,298 117,809
After 1 year but within 2 years 100,578 109,943 98,041 110,105
After 2 year but within 3 years 93,558 99,144 97,332 106,183
After 3 year but within 4 years 50,479 53,593 94,955 100,544
After 4 year but within & years 52,480 53,593 50,479 53,593
After 5 years 4,466 4,466 56,946 58,057
402,318 434,605 500,051 546,291
Less: total future interest
expenses - (32,287) - (46,240)
Present value of lease
liabilities 402,318 402,318 500,051 500,051
Weighted average effective

interest rate % 3.80% 3.43%
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Interest-bearing liabilities

FTLife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Group
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000
4.125% notes due 2023 (note (i)) 1,958,995 1,935,456
Financing received under a financial reinsurance
arrangement (note (ii)) 235,282 283,483
Cash collateral received for cross currency swap
agreements and forward starting swap agreements
(note 30) 46,737 640,836
2,241,014 2,859,775
Company
At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$’000
Financing received under a financial reinsurance
arrangement (note (ii)) 235,282 283,483
Cash collateral received for cross currency swap
agreements and forward starting swap agreements
{note 30) 46,737 640,836
282,019 924,319

Notes:

M

On 25 April 2013, FTL Capital Limited issued an aggregate principal amount of
US$250 million (approximately HK$1,940 miilion) of guaranteed bonds with a
coupon rate of 4.125% (the “Bonds II”) due 25 April 2023 to independent third party
investors, whereby FTL Capital Limited raised approximately HK$1,915,364,000
(US$2486,790,000), net of expenses.

Interest on the Bonds |l is repayable on 25 April and 25 October of each year,
beginning on 25 October 2013. The Bonds Il are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed by the Company. The Company's guarantee is an unsecured and
unsubordinated obligation which ranks equally with all of the Company’s other
existing and future unsecured and unsubordinated obligations. As required by the
insurance laws of Hong Kong and Bermuda, the Company's guarantee is
effectively junior to the liabilities of its long term business, to the extent of the assets
maintained by the Company in respect of its long term business. The Bonds |l are
listed on the Main Board of the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited
and under the provisions of Regulation S of the United States Securities Act.

The Bonds Il will fully mature on 25 April 2023 and shall be repayable within the
next twelve months. The effective interest rate of the Bonds Il is 4.29% per annum.
The amortised cost of the Bonds Il was HK$1,958,995,000 as at 30 June 2022 (As
at 30 June 2021: HK$1,935,456,000).
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Interest-bearing liabilities {Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

(Continued)

At 30 June 2022, the fair value of the Bonds |l was approximately
HK$1,959,822,000 (As at 30 June 2021: HK$2,019,992,000).

For the purpose of HKFRS 13, the fair value of Bonds Il is determined based on
the recent price offered by third parties in the market. As Bonds Il is not actively
traded in the market during 2022, the fair value of Bonds Il is categorised as Level
2 as at 30 June 2022 (As at 30 June 2021: Level 2).

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value hierarchy
at each reporting date.

The Company had a financial reinsurance arrangement with a reinsurer. Under the
financial reinsurance arrangement with effect from 2012, the Company had
received an up-front fee of US$45 million at a finance cost of 90-day LIBOR plus
5.4%. During 2016, the Company had obtained another up-front fee of US$58
million from the reinsurer. Together with the previous US$45 million, the finance
cost is revised to 90- day HIBOR plus 2.975%. The directors consider that the fair
value of the financing approximately equals to the corresponding carrying value.

The maturity profile of the financing received under the financial reinsurance
arrangement is stated as below:

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Repayable within one year 100,198 86,717
Repayable after one year 135,084 196,766
235,282 283,483

Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts

insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts are composed of liabilities
for guaranteed benefits, liabilities for coinsurance paymenis and a provision for
policyholders’ dividends earned. Liabilities for guaranteed benefits take into account future
guaranteed benefit payments and premium receipts.

Liabilities for coinsurance payments are set aside to fund future payments on coinsurance
arrangements. The provision for dividends represents half of the expecied annual
policyholders’ dividends payable in 2022 as this is considered to have been earned in
2021. The dividend policy is at the discretion of the Company’s board. During the year
ended 30 June 2022, the Group incurred total annual dividends of HK$192.4 million (For
the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: HK$268.8 million).
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Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts (Continued)

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Liabilities for guaranteed benefits 41,712,653 36,516,883

Liabilities for coinsurance payments 231,473 224,343

Provision for annual dividends 70,145 69,367
Gross insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-

linked contracts (note 29(d)) 42,014,271 36,810,593

Policyholders' dividends and bonuses (note 38) 3,982,172 3,661,032
Gross insurance contract liabilities related fo non-unit-

linked contracts including policyholders’ dividends
and bonuses 45,996,443 40,471,625

Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts, net of the unexpired
reinsurance risk, are as below:

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked
contracts (note 29(d)) 41,782,798 36,586,250
Coinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
{note 29(d)) 231,473 224,343
Gross insurance contract liabilities related to
non-unit-linked contracts (note 29(d)) 42,014,271 36,810,593
Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities
{note 27 and note 29(d)) (1,685) (1,649)
Insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked
contracts, net of reinsurers’ share (note 29(d)) 42,012,586 36,808,244

The maturity profile of insurance contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts
including policyholders’ dividends and bonuses is stated as below:

Group and Company

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Payable within one year 4,263,808 3,894,055
Payable after one year 41,732,635 36,477,570

45,996,443 40,471,625
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FTLife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
38 Policyholders’ dividends and bonuses

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 3,661,032 3,238,517
Provided during the year/pericd 555,517 833,021
Utilised during the year/period (261,292) (403,932}
Exchange realignment 26,915 (6,574)
At 30 June 3,982,172 3,661,032

39 Investment contract liabilities related to non-unit-linked contracts

Group and Company

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

At 1 July/1 January 5,148 5,166
Withdrawals ' (32) (334)
Interest, bonus credited and fair value movement 139 316
At 30 June 5,265 5,148

The above amounts are repayable after the next twelve months.
40 Share capital

At At

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

UsS$'000 Us$'000

Authorised share capital 700,000 700,000
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Share capital (Continued)

At At

30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

Issued and fully paid:
506,100,141 (At 30 June 2021: 506,100,141)

ordinary shares of US$1 each 3,938,134 3,938,134
9,000,000 (At 30 June 2021: 9,000,000} Class A

redeemable preference shares of US$1 each

(note (i)) 69,955 69,955
10,000,000 (At 30 June 2021: 10,000,000) Class
C redeemable preference shares of US$1 each
{note (ii)) 77,611 77,611
4,085,700 4,085,700
Notes:

(i)

(ii)

The Class A redeemable preference shares contain the following terms:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(e)

The Class A redeemable preference shares shall, subject to the provisions
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), be redeemed at the
option of the Company only.

Redemption of any of the Class A redeemable preference shares shall be
effected by delivery of a notice in writing from the Company, giving at least
fourteen days' notice of redemption, which shall be delivered to the holder
of such Class A redeemable preference shares at his address in the register
of members.

Upon redemption, the holder of the Class A redeemable preference shares
shall be entitled to the par value thereof and to such premium, as the Board
may in its absolute discretion think fit, subject to the provisions of the
Companies Act.

Upon redemption, the holders of the Class A redeemable preference
shares shall be entitled to receive the par value thereof and to such
premium in priority to the holders of any other issued shares in the capital
of the Company including Class B redeemable preference shares.

Subject only to the provisions in the schedule attached to the Company's
bye- laws, the Class A redeemable preference shares shall rank pari passu
with and have all the rights attaching to the ordinary shares of the Company.

The Class C redeemable preference shares contain the following terms:

(a)

(b)

The Class C redeemable preference shares are subscribed at US$25.00
per share (“Notional Amount”).

Dividend Rights: Each holder of the Class C redeemable preference shares
shall be entitled to a dividend at a fixed rate of 7.715% of the Notional
Amount payable at the full discretion of the Board on a non-cumulative
basis and subject to applicable laws. The declaration of dividend shall be
subject to the approval of the Board every year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Share capital (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

The Class C redeemable preference shares contain the following terms:
{Continued)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Dividends shall be paid prior and in preference to any and all other shares
in the capital of the Company.

Redemption Rights: Subject to the requirements of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda, the Class C redeemable preference shares shall be
redeemable at the option of the Company at a redemption price equal to
the Notional Amount on completion of a ten-year period from the initial
issuance date of the Class C redeemable preference shares. The Company
shall effect redemption upon providing fourteen days’ notice in writing to
each relevant holder at the address set out in the register of members of
the Company. Any redemption shall be subject to the prior written consent
of the Hong Kong Insurance Authority or any equivalent regulatory
authority.

Conversion Rights: Upon the Company and the holder’'s mutual agreement,
the Class C redeemable preference shares may be converted into ordinary
shares of the Company (“Ordinary Shares”) at the Conversion Ratio. The
initial Conversion Ratio shall be 1:1 subject to standard adjustments for
sub-divisions and consolidations of the Ordinary Shares where there is no
like subdivision or consolidation of the Class C redeemable preference
shares such that the number of Ordinary Shares issuable on conversion of
each Class C redeemable preference share will be increased or decreased
in proportion to such increase or decrease of the aggregate Ordinary
Shares outstanding.

Voting: The holder(s) of the Class C redeemable preference shares shall
be entitied to the notice of and to attend and, on a poll, to one vote for each
Class C redeemable preference share held at all general meetings of the
Company.

Liquidation: On any liquidation of the Company or on any return of capital,
the holder of the Class C redeemable preference shares shall rank pari
passu with the holders of the Ordinary Shares to the surplus assets of the
Company.

Other rights: Subject to the above terms, the holder(s) of the Class C
redeemable preference shares shall otherwise rank pari passu with the
holder(s) of the Ordinary Shares.

On 21 September 2019, the Company executed an undertaking under which it will
obtain prior written consent from the Insurance Authority before any dividend is
declared or paid to the shareholder of the Company.

Reserves

Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 14 and
15 of the consolidated financial statements.
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Financial instruments

Financial instruments by category

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 lune 2022

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the reporting

date are as follows:

At 30 June 2022

Financial assets

Policy loans

Loans to agents

Debt securities

Equities

interests in investment funds

Investments related to unit-
linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

At 30 June 2022

Financial liabifities

Investment contract liabilities
related to non-unit-linked
contracts

Investment contract liabilities
refated to unit-linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing liabilities

Accrued expenses and other
creditors

At 30 June 2022

Group

At fair

At fair value through

value other

through comprehensive At amortised

profit or loss income costs Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 543,428 543,428
- - 99,645 99,645
42,375 39,530,049 - 39,572,424
4,231,776 1,020,965 - 5,252,741
3,888,402 - - 3,888,402
8,621,877 27,284 8,649,161
64,475 - - 64,475
- - 413,916 413,916
- - 5,591,137 5,591,137
16,848,905 40,551,014 6,675,410 64,075,329
5,255 - - 5,255
8,155,056 - - 8,155,056
13,705 13,705
- - 2,241,014 2,241,014
- - 1,097,984 1,097,984
8,174,016 - 3,338,098 11,513,014
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Financial instruments (Continued}

Financial instruments by category (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the reporting

date are as follows: (Continued)

At 30 June 2022 (Continued)

Financial assefs

Policy loans

Loans to agents

Debt securities

Equities

Interests in investment funds

Investments related to unit-
linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

At 30 June 2022

Financial liabilities

Investment contract liabilities
refated to non-unit-linked
contracts

Investment contract liabilities
related to unit-linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Amount due to a subsidiary

Interest-bearing liabilities

Accrued expenses and other
creditors

At 30 June 2022

Company

At fair

At fair value through

value other

through comprehensive At amortised

profit or loss income costs Total
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 543,428 543,428
- - 99,645 99,645
42,375 39,530,049 - 39,572,424
4,231,776 1,020,965 - 5,252,741
3,888,402 - - 3,888,402
8,621,877 27,284 8,649,161
64,475 - - 64,475
- - 413,916 413,916
- - 5,576,531 5,676,531
16,848,905 40,551,014 6,660,804 64,060,723
5,255 - - 5,255
8,155,056 - - 8,155,056
13,705 13,705
- - 1,952,564 1,952,564
- - 282,019 282,019
- - 1,082,985 1,082,985
8,174,016 - 3,317,568 11,491,584
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments by category (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the reporting

date are as follows: (Continued)

At 30 June 2021

Financial assets

Policy loans

Loans to agents

Debt securities

Equities

Interests in investment funds

[nvestments related fo unit-
linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

At 30 June 2021

Financial liabilities

Investment contract liabilities
refated to non-unit-linked
contracts

investment contract liabilities
related to unit-linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Interest-bearing liabilities

Accrued expenses and other
creditors

At 30 June 2021

Group

At fair

At fair value through

value other

through comprehensive At amortised

profit or loss income costs Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 506,350 506,350
- - 65,630 65,630
- 42,257,517 - 42,257,517
1,823,229 1,595,449 - 3,418,678
7,213,661 - - 7,213,661
10,717,126 - 53,068 10,770,194
1,452,920 - - 1,452,920
- - 974,797 974,797
- - 4,497,232 4,497,232
21,206,936 43,852,966 6,097,077 71,156,979
5,148 - - 5,148
10,136,766 - - 10,136,766
796 796
- - 2,859,775 2,859,775
- - 1,850,071 1,950,071
10,142,710 - 4,809,846 14,952,556
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Financial instruments (Continued}

Financial instruments by category (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at the reporting

date are as follows: (Continued)

At 30 June 2021 (Continued)

Financial assets

Policy loans

Loans to agents

Debt securities

Equities

Interests in investment funds

Investments related to unit-
linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits and other debtors

Cash and cash equivalents

At 30 June 2021

Financial liabifities

Investment contract liabilities
related to non-unit-linked
contracts

Investment contract liabilities
related to unit-linked contracts

Derivative financial instruments

Amount due to a subsidiary

Interest-bearing liabilities

Accrued expenses and other
creditors

At 30 June 2021

Company
Financial
Financial assets at fair

assets at fair  value through Financial

value other assets

through comprehensive  at amortised
profit or loss income costs Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- - 506,350 506,350
- - 65,630 65,630
- 42,257,517 - 42,257,517
1,823,229 1,695,449 - 3,418,678
7,213,661 - - 7,213,661
10,717,126 - 53,068 10,770,194
1,452,920 - - 1,452,920
- - 974,407 974,407
- - 4,485,683 4,485,683
21,206,936 43,852,966 6,085,138 71,145,040
5,148 - - 5,148
10,136,766 - - 10,136,766
796 796
- - 1,931,933 1,931,933
- - 924,319 924,319
- - 1,835,041 1,935,041
10,142,710 - 4,791,293 14,934,003
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value

Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the Group’s financial instruments that are measured at fair

value at the reporting date , categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined

in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation technique as follows:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date.

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs
which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are not available.

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable inputs.

The financial insiruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis are further analysed
as below:

Group and Company

Total Level 1 level 2 Level 3
At 30 June 2022 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assels
Debt securities 30,572,424 20,934,007 0,506,042 42,375
Equities 5,252,741 2,796,971 - 2,455,770
Interests in investment funds 3,888,402 3,888,402 - -
Investments related to unit-
linked contracts 8,621,877 8,621,877 - -
Derivative financial
instruments:
- Cross currency swap
agreements 791 - 791 -
- Forward starting swap
agreemenis 63,684 - 63,684 -
At 30 June 2022 57,399,919 45,241,257 9,660,517 2,498,145
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Liabilities

Investment contract liahilities
related to non-unit-linked
contracts

Investment contract liabilities

related to unit-linked contracts

Derivative financial
instruments:
- Cross currency swap
agreements

At 30 June 2022

At 30 June 2021
Assets
Debt securities
Equities
Interests in investment funds
Investments related to unit-
linked contracts
Derivative financial
instruments:
- Cross currency swap
agreements
- Forward starting swap
agreements
- Put option

At 30 June 2021

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 lune 2022

Group and Company

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,255 - 5,255 -
8,155,056 - 8,155,056 -
13,705 - 13,705 -
8,174,016 - 8,174,016 -
Group and Company
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
42 257,517 29,252,830 13,004,687 -
3,418,678 2,287,898 - 1,130,780
7,213,661 7,213,661 - -
10,717,126 10,717,126 - -
16,296 - 16,296 -
' 634,855 - 634,855 -
801,769 - - 801,769
65,059,902 49 471,515 13,655,838 1,932,549
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Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
Group and Company

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Liabilities

Investment contract liabilities
related to non-unit-linked

contracts 5,148 - 5,148 -
Investment contract liabilities

related to unit-linked contracts 10,136,766 - 10,136,766 -
Derivative financial

instruments:
- Cross currency swap

agreements 796 - 796 -

Af 30 June 2021 10,142,710 - 10,142,710 -

As at 30 June 2022, bonds with market value approximately of HK$2,764,991,000 (As at
30 June 2021: HK$914,744,000) and approximately of HK$3,192,572,000 (As at 30 June
2021: HK$37,740,000) included in FVOCI (recycling) financial assets, were reclassified
from Level 1 to Level 2 and from Level 2 to Level 1, respectively. There were no transfers
into or out of Level 3 during the year/period end. For other financial instruments measured
at fair value on a recurring basis, there are no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers in or out of Level 3. The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels
of the fair value hierarchy at each reporting date.

Valuation techniques and the inputs used in the Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of forward starting swap agreements and forward exchange agreements is
determined by discounting the contractual future cash flows. The discount rate used is
derived from the relevant swap curve as at the reporting date.

The fair value of cross currency swap agreements is determined by discounting the
contractual future cash flows. The exchange rate and discount rate used are derived from
the relevant foreign exchange forward rates and swap curve as at the reporting date, with
potential adjustment made for various collateraiisation agreement.

The fair value of bonds in Level 2 is determined by the latest transaction price quoted by
the custodian. As there was no active market for such bonds as at the reporting date, they
are classified as Levei 2. There is no change in valuation approach for the Level 2 financial
instruments.
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Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Investments in partnerships in private equity funds

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Fair value of investments in partnerships in private equity funds (the “Partnerships”) is
estimated by reference to the quoted market prices of underlying investments held or
based upon valuation techniques developed by the managers of the Partnerships that use,
where possible, current market based or independently sourced market parameters, such
as interest rates, currency rates and option volatilities. The fair value measurement of
underlying investments is positively correlated to the fund valuation. Transaction price is

used as the best estimate of fair value at inception.

The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of Level 3 financial instruments
to reasonably possible alternative assumptions used in the fair value measurement

derived from valuation techniques or market prices of underlying investments:

Financial assets
{FVPL):
- Unlisted equities

- Debt instruments

Financial assets
(FVPL):
- Unlisted equities

- Put option

Valuation
technique

Adjusted net
asset value

Income
Appreach

Valuation
technique

Adjusted net
asset value

Monte Carlo
simulation
mode]

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Discount for
lack of
marketability/
restricted
redemptions

Discount for
rental income
cash flows

Significant
unobservable
inputs

Discount for
lack of
marketability/
restricted
redemptions

Drift rate

Discount for
lack of
marketability
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30 June 2022

Increase/ Increase/

Change in (decrease)in (decrease)in
variables profit or loss equity
HK$’000 HK$'000

+10% 245,577 245,577
-10% (245,577) (245,577)
+10% 4,237 4,237
-10% (4,237) (4,237)

30 June 2021

Increase/ Increase/

Change in (decrease)in (decrease)in
variables profit or loss equity
HK$'000 HK$’000

+10% 113,078 113,078
-10% {113,078) (113,078)
+20% (10,321) {10,321)
-20% 10,321 10,321
+5% (17,242) (17,242)

-5% 17,242 17,242
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial instruments {Continued)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements (Continued)

Put option

As at 30 June 2021, fair value of the put option is estimated by an independent valuation
consultant. Valuation techniques used involve the use of current market based or
independently sourced market parameters, such as interest rates, currency rates and
option volatilities. Fair value measurement of the underlying investments is negatively
correlated with the put option valuation. Transaction price is used as the best estimate of
fair value at inception unless no net investment is required at inception.

The movement during the year/period in the balance of Level 3 fair value measurements

is as follows:

For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Financial assets - Unlisted equities (FVPL)
At 1 July/1 January 1,130,780 499,179
Purchases 1,297,020 693,551
Sales (133,146) (153,111)
Total realised and unrealised gains recognised in
profit or loss during the year/period 161,116 91,161
At 30 June 2,455,770 1,130,780
Total gains or losses for the year included in the profit
or loss for assets held at the reporting date 73,566 84,302
For the
For the eighteen
year months
ended ended
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Derivative financial instrument - Put option
At 1 July/1 January 801,769 298,854
De-recognition (906,915) -
Total realised and unrealised gain recognised in other
comprehensive income during the year/period 105,146 502,915
At 30 June - 801,769
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Contingent liabilities

As at 30 June 2022, the Group and the Company had no material contingent liabilities and
contingencies arising from the ordinary course of the Group's long term insurance
business (As at 30 June 2021: HKNI).

Lease arrangements
As lessor

The Group leases one commercial investment properties (note 17) that purchased in May
2022 under operating lease arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group during
the year was HK$1,756,000 (For the eighteen months ended 30 June 2021: Nil), details
of which are included in note 12 to the financial statements. At 30 June 2022, there is no
undiscounted lease payments receivable by the Group in future periods under
noncancellable operating leases with its tenants.

The Group’s tenant, The Dragon Seed Company, Limited, is a fellow subsidiary of the
Company is obliged to pay a termination value for any early termination based on the
actual termination date. Lease benefits guarantee of HK$42,375,000 as at reporting date
was recognised as an unlisted debt instruments.

As lessee

The future lease payments are recognised as lease liabilities in the statement of financial
position in accordance with the policies set out in note 2.4(u), and the details regarding the
Group's future lease payments are disclosed in note 35.

Commitments

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note 44(b) above, the Group
and the Company had the following capital commitments as at the reporting date:

Group and Company

At At
30 June 30 June
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
Authorised but not contracted for

- an ongoing projects - 900

Contracted, but not provided for, in respect of
- several ongoing projects 6,159 620,450
- capital contribution of investment funds 936,796 413,446
942,955 1,033,896
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Material related party transactions

FTLife insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Details of the material transactions during the year ended 30 June 2022 and for the
eighteen months ended 30 June 2021 and outstanding balances as at 30 June 2022 and
2021 with companies related to the Group and the Company were as follows:

Note
NWD Group:
Interest income from bonds (i)
Dividend income from Shoucheng Holdings (ii}
Group life insurance premium income (iii)
Rental income from investment properties (iv)
Purchase of investment properties (iv)
Bonds acquired - NWD MTN Ltd. (i
Equity acquired - Shoucheng Holdings (ii)
Other expenses (V)
CTF Group:
Group life insurance premium income (vi)
Other expenses (vii)
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Group
2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000
121,250 110,056
32,910 34,470
4,270 5,332
1,756 -
705,679 -
2,500,000 2,500,000
450,000 450,000
8,572 15,838
2,524 -
1,129 1,292




46
(@)

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Material related party transactions (Continued)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

Details of the material transactions and outstanding balances with companies related to

the Group and the Company were as follows: (Continued)

Company
Note 2022 2021
HK$'000 HK$'000

NWD Group:
Interest income from bonds (i) 121,250 110,056
Dividend income from Shoucheng Holdings (ii) 32,910 34,470
Group life insurance premium income (iii) 4,270 5,332
Rental income from investment properties (iv) 1,756 -
Purchase of investment properties (iv) 705,679 -
Bonds acquired - NWD MTN Ltd. (i) 2,500,000 2,500,000
Equity acquired - Shoucheng Holdings (ii) 450,000 450,000
Other expenses (v) 8,672 15,838
CTF Group:
Group life insurance premium income {vi) 2,524 -
Other Expenses (vii) 1,129 1,292
FTL Capital Limited:
Loan due to FTL Capital Limited (viii} 1,976,963 1,956,126
Interest expense to FTL Capital Limited (ix) 83,381 124,212

-122 -



46
(a)

FTLife Insurance Company Limited
Financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Material related party transactions (Continued)

Details of the material transactions and outstanding balances with companies related to
the Group and the Company were as follows: (Continued)

Notes:

()

(ii)

(i)
(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vil)

(viii)

(ix)

The Company subscribed for 2 bonds issued by a wholly-owned subsidiary of NWD
for HK$1,500,000,000 and HK$1,000,000,000. Interest income of
HK$121,250,000 was derived from the bond during the year (For the eighteen
months ended 30 June 2021: HK$110,056,000).

As at 30 June 2022, its fair value amounted to HK$1,946,766,000 (At 30 June
2021: HK$1,501,725,000).

The Company subscribed for listed equity shares issued by Shoucheng Holdings
for HK$450,000,000. Shoucheng Holdings is an associated company of NWS
Holdings Limited. Dividend income of HK$32,310,000 was derived from the equity
shares during the year ended 30 June 2022 (For the eighteen months ended 30
June 2021:HK$34,470,000).

The Company sold group life insurance products to the companies of NWD.

The Company has completed purchase of two commercial invesiment properties
which located in 19th and 20th Floor, NCB Innovation Centre, No. 888 Lai Chi Kok
Road, Kowloon at HK$678,679,000 at arms’ length from Good Sense Development
Limited on 31 May 2022. The office building is purchased for long-term rental
generating purpose.

On 22 June 2022, the Company has completed purchase 18 car parks at NCB
Innovation Centre, No. 888 Lai Chi Kok Road, Kowloon at HK$27,000,000 from
Good Sense Development Limited.

On 7 September 2022, the Company signed a tenancy agreement for the two
commercial investment properties with The Dragon Seed Company Limited for 6
years for the two office with an annual rent of HK$21,070,000 at arms’ length which
effective from 31 May 2022.

The Company mainly purchased goods from and obtained convention and
exhibition faciiities provided by the fellow subsidiaries within NWD Group.

The Company sold group life insurance products to the fellow subsidiaries within
Chow Tai Fook (CTF) Group.

The Company mainly purchased goeds from the fellow subsidiaries within Chow
Tai Fook (CTF) Group.

On 26 Aprii 2013, a loan of US$250,000,000 was obtained from FTL Capital
Limited, a subsidiary to the Company. The loan is unsecured, interest-bearing at
4.215% per annum and repayable on 25 April 2023.

Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on 25 April and 25 October in each

year. As at 30 June 2022, the interest accrued amounted to HK$15,388,000 (At 30
June 2021: HK$15,226,000).
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FTLIFE INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Material related party transactions (Continued)

The Group and Company have provided loans to agents which bear interest at the
prevailing bark lending rates, and some are repayable on a monthly instalment basis.
Details of these loans are included in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group and Company have also provided advances to agents which are interest-free,
details of these advances are included in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

Compensation of key management personnel of the Group:

For the

For the eighteen

year months

ended ended

30 June 30 June

2022 2021

HK$'000 HK$'000

Short term employee benefits 56,757 74,796

Post-employment benefits 3,257 3,787
Total compensation paid to key management

personnel 60,014 78,583

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Interests in structured entities

There are interests in investment funds included in financial assets and investments
related to unit-linked contracts (see notes 21 and 25), in which they have been designed
so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding who controls these
schemes. These investment funds provide the policyholders, the Group and the Company
with a variety of investment opportunities through managed investment sirategies.

Owing to the passive nature of these investments, the maximum exposure to loss from
these interests is limited to the associated equity price risk (see note 29(g)iii)). The
maximum exposure to loss, which represents the maximum loss that the Group and the
Company could be required to report as a resuilt of its involvement with these investment
funds regardless of the probability of the loss being incurred, is equivalent to the carrying
amount of these investments (see notes 21 and 25).

There are also some investments in the Partnerships. The Group and the Company hold
the interests as limited partners and do not control nor consolidate the Partnerships.
Subject to the terms of respective Partnerships, there shail be further capital call for
investments. As at 30 June 2022, the outstanding capital commitment to invest in these
Partnerships amounted to US$119,393,000 which equivalent to approximately
HK$936,793,000 for eight partnerships (As at 30 June 2021: US$53,254,000 which
equivalent to approximately HK$413,447,000 for four partnerships) confirmed as at that
date. The maximum exposure to loss is the carrying amount of these investments (see
note 42(b}).
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